
 

 

Agenda - Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a 

Seilwaith 
Lleoliad: 

Fideogynhadledd drwy Zoom 

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 20 Hydref 

2021 

Amser: 10.00

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Marc Wyn Jones 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru
------ 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat (09.45-10.00)  

 

Yn unol â Rheol Sefydlog 34.19, mae’r Cadeirydd wedi penderfynu 

bod y cyhoedd wedi eu gwahardd o gyfarfod y Pwyllgor er mwyn 

diogelu iechyd y cyhoedd. Caiff y cyfarfod hwn ei ddarlledu'n fyw ar 

www.senedd.tv  

 

Cyfarfod cyhoeddus (10.00-12.00)  

 

1 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(10.00)   

 

2 Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr 

Amgylchedd a Seilwaith: Craffu ar waith y Gweinidog a’r Dirprwy 

Weinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

(10.00-10.55) (Tudalennau 1 - 38)  

Julie James AS, y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

Lee Waters AS, y Dirprwy Weinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

John Howells, Cyfarwyddwr Newid Hinsawdd, Ynni a Chynllunio 

Gian Marco Currado, Cyfarwyddwr Yr Amgylchedd a’r Môr 

Steve Vincent, Cyfarwyddwr Seilwaith Economaidd 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

 

Chris Wheeler, Pennaeth Datgarboneiddio ac Ynni 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Briff Ymchwil 

Papur - Llywodraeth Cymru (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

Egwyl (10.55-11.05)  

 

3 Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr 

Amgylchedd a Seilwaith: Craffu ar waith y Gweinidog a’r Dirprwy 

Weinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

(11.05-12.00)   

Julie James AS, y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

Lee Waters AS, y Dirprwy Weinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

John Howells, Cyfarwyddwr Newid Hinsawdd, Ynni a Chynllunio 

Gian Marco Currado, Cyfarwyddwr Yr Amgylchedd a’r Môr 

Steve Vincent, Cyfarwyddwr Seilwaith Economaidd 

Chris Wheeler, Pennaeth Datgarboneiddio ac Ynni 

 

4 Papurau i'w nodi 

(12.00)   

 

4.1 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar gyfer Bil yr Amgylchedd: 

 (Tudalennau 39 - 46)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar y Memorandwm 

Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar gyfer Bil yr Amgylchedd 

4.2 Safleoedd Rheoli Ffiniau yng Nghymru 

 (Tudalennau 47 - 61)  

Dogfennau atodol: 



 

 

Llythyr gan Weinidog yr Economi at y Cadeirydd ynghylch Safleoedd Rheoli 

Ffiniau yng Nghymru (Atodiadau - Saeseng yn unig) 

4.3 Ardaloedd Morol Gwarchodedig yng Nghymru 

 (Tudalennau 62 - 67)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau at y Cadeirydd ynghylch treillio ar 

wely'r môr ac Ardaloedd Morol Gwarchodedig yng Nghymru 

Llythyr gan Cyswllt Amgylchedd Cymru at y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd a'r 

Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd mewn perthynas 

â treillio ar wely’r môr ac Ardaloedd Morol Gwarchodedig (Saesneg yn unig) 

4.4 Gweithgynhyrchu yng Nghymru 

 (Tudalennau 68 - 69)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Gohebiaeth gan y Cyfarwyddwr Aelodaeth, Cymru - Make UK, sefydliad y 

gweithgynhyrchwyr, at y Cadeirydd ynghylch gweithgynhyrchu yng Nghymru 

(Saesneg yn unig) 

4.5 Rheoliadau Amodau Ffytoiechydol (Diwygio rhif 2) 2021 

 (Tudalennau 70 - 71)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd at y Cadeirydd ynghylch Rheoliadau 

Amodau Ffytoiechydol (Diwygio rhif 2) 2021 

 

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 (vi) a (ix) i benderfynu 

gwahardd y cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod heddiw 

(12.00)   

 

Cyfarfod preifat (12.00-12.15)  

 



 

 

6 Trafod y dystiolaeth a glywyd yn ystod sesiynau craffu ar waith y 

Gweinidogion o dan eitemau 2 a 3 

  

7 Trafod blaenraglen waith y Pwyllgor 

 (Tudalennau 72 - 75)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Papur – Blaenraglen Waith 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Page 1 of 16 
 

Minister for Climate Change, Evidence Paper for the Climate 
Change, Environment and Infrastructure Committee 

 
 
 
 
The climate emergency is the biggest existential threat to our planet. To begin to 
tackle the crisis action is needed across government, business and communities. We 
need to urgently reduce emissions, explore greener technologies and each of us can 
make a difference. 
 
To decarbonise and help Wales reach its legally binding target of reaching Net Zero 
by 2050 we will all need to do much more to reduce our carbon emissions over the 
next 10 years than we have in the last 30. We must follow the scientific advice, do 
things differently and be bold. 
 
The Senedd was the first Parliament to declare a climate change emergency. This 
proved how seriously the issues of climate change are taken in Wales and how 
determined we are as a Government to act. 
 
At the start of this Senedd the First Minister created a new Ministry to focus on climate 
change. The Minister and Deputy Minister for Climate Change have been asked to 
ensure that we put the environment, biodiversity loss and climate change at the heart 
of everything we do as a government. By bringing together responsibilities for housing, 
transport, planning, energy and the environment, we will tackle the dangers of climate 
change, enhance our natural assets to the full and build the green, sustainable future 
for Wales that we hope to see.  
 
We will also need to adapt to the impacts climate change. We are already seeing the 
effects of our changing climate and must act now to protect the most vulnerable 
people and communities in Wales.   
 
Protecting nature and decarbonising will help us all by improving our health, benefiting 
our economy and preserving Wales’ beautiful landscapes and nature for future 
generations. 
 
In June this year the Senedd declared a nature emergency and called for statutory 

targets to be set to halt and reverse the decline in biodiversity. This follows recent 
international research showing the fragility of many of our ecosystems with 
more than a million species at risk of extinction due to pressures including 
habitat loss, pollution, invasive non-native species and climate change. This 
declaration will put Welsh Government action on nature on a par with climate 
change in terms of urgency and significance. 
 
The Welsh Government’s published First Supplementary Budget for 2021-22 reflected 
the changes to Ministerial portfolios announced on 13 May.  A Climate Change 
portfolio was created for the first time in Welsh Government with a total budget 
allocation of £2.633billion. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 23



Page 2 of 16 
 

This paper summarises the issues and activity taking place across key areas of the 
climate change portfolio. It builds on the letter that was sent to the Chair of the 
Climate Change, Environment and Infrastructure Committee in July 2021, by 
including further information on priority work and commitments made in the 
Programme for Government.   

Climate Change  

Climate change concerns both the work to reduce our emissions to net zero, and 
work to deal with the climate risks we already face. 
 
In March 2021, Wales committed to the stretching target of net-zero emissions by 
2050.  The Senedd set this target in legislation alongside a series of carbon budgets 
and decadal targets, underpinned by advice from the Climate Change Committee 
(CCC), our statutory advisors. Carbon Budget 1 was 2016-2020 and required an 
average reduction of 27%. Carbon Budget 2 is 2021-2025 is for an average 37% 
reduction.  We have committed to publishing our new Net Zero Wales Plan on 28 
October, ready for COP26 in Glasgow. 
 
The 2030 decadal target is for 63% reduction against the baseline. This reflects the 
need for the 2020s to be ‘the decade of action’ and for everyone to play their part if 
we are to meet net zero by 2050. This is reflected in the Plan which captures both 
the commitments from, and the requirements of, businesses, workers and 
communities across Wales. The Welsh Government must use every opportunity 
within its strategy for recovery from the pandemic to embed and drive positive 
changes with regards to emissions. The forthcoming COP Cymru will be a key 
stepping stone in this engagement journey. 
 
Within my portfolio, the new UK Emissions Trading Scheme, introduced in January 
2021, covers all major power, industry and aviation emitters (some 46% of total 
Welsh emissions). The Scheme enables carbon ‘allowances’ to be bought and sold 
at auction and in a carbon market. It is managed by a joint four-nation Authority. It is 
not yet linked to the EU scheme, although the devolved nations and elements of UK 
Government have been advocating this approach for some time, alongside the 
majority of scheme participants. I expect to consult on changes to strengthen the 
Scheme in the coming months. 
 
The Welsh Government recognises that the public sector must take a leading role in 
driving down emissions, reflected in our ambition for a net-zero public sector by 
2030. We continue to drive progress in this area and have developed a monitoring 
framework to track progress.  The Welsh Government Energy Service offers 
technical advice alongside loans to public sector and community organisations for 
renewable and retrofit projects. A wide variety of public organisations have benefitted 
from our decarbonisation innovation programme, which seeks to identify and nurture 
new and ground-breaking ideas and concepts to support work on decarbonisation, 
especially those which take a systems view of the challenge. 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 24



Page 3 of 16 
 

Climate Adaptation describes the actions required to adapt to the effects of climate 
change, such as increased rainfall in winter and warmer, drier summers. The Climate 
Change Act requires Welsh Ministers to report on the Welsh Government’s 
objectives, actions and future priorities regarding the impacts of climate change and 
also provides Welsh Ministers with powers with regards to public bodies and their 
response to climate risk. I expect to make a statement in due course on the delivery 
of the current Adaptation plan Prosperity for All: A Climate Conscious Wales, 
including on any updates which may be required in light of the latest CCC advice. 
 
The Welsh Government has supported a wide range of innovative projects designed 
to make progress with respect to decarbonisation and energy efficiency, but is 
dependent on funding for innovation from UKG / BEIS and Europe.  

Energy 

The UK energy system is facing a period of significant change and upheaval as we 
transfer to renewable sources of power in support of the wider net zero agenda.  
Energy generation in Wales is evolving in line with these wider changes. The Welsh 
Government set out a comprehensive statement of its approach to energy policy in 
Energy Wales: A Low Carbon Transition and we have subsequently published more 
detailed policies. 
 
The devolved planning system is one of our greatest levers in driving changes 
across Wales over the longer period. Planning Policy Wales, our main policy 
statement, places fossil fuel extraction at the bottom of its fuel hierarchy, which in 
turn supports the aspirations to a net-zero energy system.  
 
The Welsh Government is heavily involved in a range of initiatives designed to 
promote public ownership and reduce emissions from the power sector, which 
remains the largest emissions sector in Wales as a result of developments which 
mean Wales is hosting 16% of the UK’s gas fired electricity generation.  
 
To deliver on our net zero ambitions Wales will need to develop a more 
comprehensive policy on decarbonising heat, which is a substantial cross cutting 
challenge linked to fuel poverty, housing, commercial, industrial and waste policy 
areas.  
 
Although the UK Government holds the principal financial and regulatory levers the 
Welsh Government has set targets for renewable energy:  
 

 for renewables to generate an amount equivalent to 70% of Wales’ electricity 
use by 2030;  

 for 1 gigawatt of renewable energy capacity to be locally owned by 2030, and  

 for all new energy developments to have at least an element of local 
ownership from 2020.  

 
In 2019, the equivalent of 51% of Wales’ electricity use came from renewables. The 
rate of increase has slowed due to UK Government incentives ending. We have 

Tudalen y pecyn 25



Page 4 of 16 
 

reached 83% of the locally owned target. Through a Ministerial led deep dive we are 
exploring the opportunities, barriers and effective actions we can take to scale up 
renewable energy generation in Wales and how we retain the wealth and ownership 
in Wales. The Welsh Government has made clear its commitment to reduce the use 
of fossil fuels. Wales has published policies hostile to petroleum extraction and to 
coal extraction and use in power generation. 
 
We have worked with the four regions of Wales to develop energy strategies 
highlighting the scale of change needed to reach net zero, and the economic 
opportunities this presents. This puts Wales in a strong position to develop the more 
detailed and integrated plans needed to design a low carbon energy system.  
 
Building on the work of the regional energy strategies, the Welsh Government is 
piloting Local Area Energy Planning (LAEP) in partnership with local authorities. This 
is a more detailed approach to identify the actions to decarbonise a local energy 
system. The process aims to inform, shape and enable key aspects of the transition 
to a low carbon energy system. It is capable of identifying what needs to happen, 
where and by when. The resulting plans will provide crucial evidence to support: 

 energy efficiency retrofit; 

 heat;  

 transport;  

 economic development; and  

 inform grid network providers’ plans.  

 
We have initiated and funded two LAEP pilots in Conwy and Newport Local Authority 
areas. We are working with Local Authorities and regional decision makers to shape 
the roll out of this more detailed planning across Wales during 2021-22. 
 
The public engagement we are beginning to see as a result of this work will be 
essential in securing the public consent to deliver the scale of change needed across 
heat, buildings, transport and power.  
 
Hydrogen is a nascent but very promising technical solution to some of our 
decarbonisation challenges. Our consultation on a Welsh pathway for hydrogen 
closed in April. The opportunities for hydrogen use in Wales will also be explored 
through Local Area Energy Planning. 
 
Decarbonising Housing 
 
The built environment and housing play a significant role in carbon emissions and 
must therefore play a significant role in meeting our net zero ambitions.  
 
We have made good progress in how to build new homes that are low or zero 
carbon in use and that generate vastly reduced emissions during the build process. 
As a result we are able to set a high bar for new homes, requiring all new social 
housing planned from 1 October to be built without the use of fossil fuels to heat the 
homes and provide hot water (revised WDQR2021). Our ambition is that where 
social housing leads, market housing will follow. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



Page 5 of 16 
 

The challenge of reducing carbon in new builds is significant enough but the 
challenge of reducing emission from our 1.4m existing homes is far greater. There 
are no easy answers and one size does not fit all. Which is why we have adopted a 
‘test and learn’ approach. Our focus is on ‘fabric ready’ interventions – making 
homes as fuel efficient as possible and getting them ready for future iterations of 
their decarbonisation journey. Most homes will undergo retrofit interventions in 
stages reflecting when it is right to do work to an individual home. This approach also 
recognises the ongoing development of skills, tech and products to decarbonise the 
wide range of homes we have. 

 
Our Optimised Retrofit Programme is the means of delivering a clear mechanism to 
take meaningful, test and learn, coordinated steps to decarbonise homes, using a 
structured, technically robust methodology, whilst remaining as affordable and 
pragmatic as possible. The approach is being further strengthened as part of our 
£50m investment this financial year by explicitly focusing on using the retrofitting of 
social homes as a vehicle for enhanced social, economic and community outcomes.  
 

Marine Energy Programme 

Infrastructure investment provides an important and much needed stimulus, creating 
the conditions for increased and sustainable growth in the medium and longer term. 
 
Since 2019 work has been underway to stimulate renewable tidal power generation 
in the seas around Wales and help support other forms of marine energy generation. 
This has the aim of creating jobs and investment in new industries in Wales.  
 
The First Minister convened the Hinkley Point C Stakeholder Reference Group in 
July 2020 to provide an independent assessment of the implications for Wales of the 
new nuclear power station currently being developed at Hinkley Point, in Somerset.  
The Group reported on its work March 2021. This is a wide ranging report which 
provides us with a valuable source of evidence and advice. We have been 
considering their findings in detail and I will soon be issuing a Written Statement in 
response.    

Trees and timber 

We need to plant 43,000 hectares of new woodland by 2030, and 180,000 hectares 
by 2050 to meet the ‘balanced pathway’ set out of the Climate Change Committee.  
 
Last year, just 290 hectares of woodland was planted in Wales and annual woodland 
creation has not exceeded 2,000 hectares since 1975. Further development of the 
National Forest, including through community woodlands, is a key part of this.  
 
Delivering our targets will require an alliance of change involving many partners. The 
vast majority of new woodland will not be planted on Welsh Government land, but by 
the communities, farmers and other landowners across Wales.  

Tudalen y pecyn 27



Page 6 of 16 
 

 
To address the barriers to woodland creation the Deputy Minister for Climate 
Change undertook a deep dive into tree planting.  This identified a series of actions, 
including a new funding scheme for woodland creation and an industrial strategy to 
coordinate the timber supply change and construction sectors.  
 
On 30th September, the Welsh Government opened a new window of the Glastir 
Woodland Creation scheme, which will allow land managers to apply for £5.5m 
funding for woodland creation. We also opened a pilot Woodland Creation Planning 
scheme as a first step to develop the new funding offer. A woodland finance working 
group is currently considering models to attract investment in woodland creation, 
without disrupting existing communities and patterns of landownership.  
 
We will open a consultation later this year on the long-term delivery of the National 
Forest. We will also begin work to identify areas for 30 new woodlands and 100 Tiny 
Forests as part of the National Forest programme. 
 
Meeting net zero, particularly in the construction sector, will also mean using much 
more timber in Wales. 80% of the timber used in the UK is imported and only 4% of 
the 1.5 million m3 of harvested Welsh timber is processed to be used as construction 
graded timber.  We have begun work on a timber industrial strategy to identify 
changes which need to take place across the timber supply chain, from the supply of 
timber, through its processing to end use and re-use. This includes looking at the 
role of NRW, who have committed to selling up to 30% of their timber through 
alternatives to the current model focussed on sale for highest financial value.  

Nature and biodiversity 

SoNaRR2020 concludes that the loss of biodiversity is accelerating globally at 
unprecedented rates and Wales needs to build resilient ecological networks and 
reduce its impact outside of Wales to tackle this.   
 
Our Nature Recovery Action Plan (NRAP) sets out the objectives and key actions 
needed in Wales to achieve our ambitions for nature recovery both as part of 
meeting our own Resilient Wales goals and our global commitments to halting the 
loss of biodiversity.  
 
It sets out Welsh Government’s priorities for tackling biodiversity loss, and reflects 
the need for action to tackle the nature and climate emergencies, build resilient 
ecological networks across our whole land and seascape to safeguard species and 
habitats, addressing the root causes of biodiversity loss, and targeting interventions 
to help species recover where necessary.  
 
We are also required to update our Natural Resources Policy to fulfil our duties 
under the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.  
 
Our vision for our seas is that they are clean, healthy, safe, productive, and 
biologically diverse.  Wales has important marine habitats, such as seagrass forests 
and saltmarshes. Our approach is structured around assessment, protection and 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



Page 7 of 16 
 

management, and restoration.  Effective marine planning for, and regulation of, new 
development is crucial to enabling sustainable marine sector growth, particularly for 
the development of marine energy projects to contribute to net zero.  
 
Our Nature Networks Fund in partnership with National Lottery Heritage Fund and 
NRW is focussed on improving the condition, connectivity and resilience of the 
protected sites network including by supporting the active involvement of 
communities in caring for them. 
 
Building on the action delivered under the Fund, we are also developing a multi-
year Nature Networks Programme with NRW to help create resilient ecological 
networks, with protected sites at their core. Our intention, subject to the UK 
Spending Review, is that we will have a multi-annual budget to support the 
implementation of the programme.  
 

The National Peatland Action Plan aims to restore at least 600-800ha of peatlands 
per year over the next five years, equating to over 3,000ha of peatlands on a 
recovery pathway by 2025. Peatland restoration is an important nature based 
solution to tackling climate change, and will safeguard an estimated 834,000 tonnes 
of carbon stock. 
 
Our ‘Local Places for Nature’ programme aims to create 'nature on your doorstep' in 
urban areas of deprivation, or those with little access to nature. Projects are 
focussed on modest measures that make an impact locally. Over this term, we will 
create 2,000 pollinators sites, 1,000 community-growing sites and places for nature 
in 50 transport hubs. 
 
We are working with NRW to take forward work on land management agreements 
(LMAs) to see land, particularly privately owned land, better cared for.  LMAs provide 
a mechanism to work directly with landowners to protect valuable habitat both on 
and outside protected areas. Landowners, particularly farmers, do not tend to apply 
to grant schemes, so LMAs provide an effective way to work with them directly to 
support the change needed on their land.  
 
We will support the Action Plan on Pollinators Taskforce by providing a secretariat, 
establishing subgroups requested by the Taskforce, and delivering the Bee Friendly 
scheme. We are working with Defra and members of the Bee Health Advisory Forum 
to develop an implementation plan for the Healthy Bees Plan 2030 and will support 
the National Bee Unit, part of APHA, to deliver the Bee Health Programme in Wales.  
 
We are working with the Joint Nature Conservation Committee (JNCC) to develop a 
suite of biodiversity indicators which will allow Ministers and stakeholders to assess 
progress towards biodiversity outcomes at a national, UK and Global level. This 
includes the development of indicator 44 on the status of biological diversity in Wales 
as required by the Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

We are committed to creating a new National Park for Wales – the first in more 
than half a century – centred on the Clwydian range and Dee Valley AONB. The 
First Minister has emphasised the importance of delivering on this commitment in the 
current Senedd term. National Parks have a vital role to play in delivering Welsh 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



Page 8 of 16 
 

Government commitments, particularly on tackling the nature emergency and 
delivering sustainable tourism.  

 
We will be working Park Authorities to ensure that they are as lean, as transparent 
and as efficient as possible in order for them to focus on the priorities that matter 
most. This may involve some governance reform, as well as increasing collaboration. 
 
Circular Economy 
 
We are prioritising the transition to a more circular economy as a key element of our 
decarbonisation aims, as well for the impact it can have to improve economic and 
social outcomes. Unsustainable consumption lies at the heart of our climate and 
nature crises with almost half of all our carbon emissions coming from the products 
we make and use every day. The pandemic and Brexit have also shown us that we 
cannot take resources for granted and therefore how we manage resources has 
never been more important.  
 
Earlier this year, Beyond Recycling – a strategy to make the circular economy a 
reality in Wales was published.  This sets out the Welsh Government’s commitment 
to accelerate our transition to a circular, low carbon economy that works to keep 
resources in use and reduce emissions. It contains key actions that will be taken 
forward across Government. Our transformational journey since the start of 
devolution, to increasing recycling and reducing waste has already established 
Wales as a world leader in this field and this provides us with both a solid foundation 
and distinct opportunity. Further increasing recycling and reducing waste remain key, 
but we also have the opportunity to develop our infrastructure and economy further 
to extract greater economic value from the materials collected.   
 
We will work with partners to look at how our existing recycling and waste collection 
infrastructure, which is very different to many parts of the UK, can maximise the 
generation of high quality resources which can be kept in use for longer and to 
minimise the amount of waste businesses generate. Some of our traditional recycling 
facilities are turning into eco-parks where items are sent for remanufacturing, re-use 
and repair rather than recycling and many social enterprises are finding value in 
collecting items for repair and re-use such as bicycles and we will therefore work to 
continue to support and expand this progression through not only the use of the 
materials, but to also drive the move to reuse and repair. 
 
The people of Wales have been at the heart of our recycling transformation with 
households the length and breadth of the country playing their part. We have also 
seen community action from sharing surplus food to coordinating litter picks. We 
have visually seen changes where we live from the growth of plastic free and zero 
waste shops and repair cafes and libraries of things supporting people to reduce 
unnecessary waste and repair and share items. The Programme for Government 
has set our very clear commitments to build on this by supporting 80 repair and re-
use hubs and community recycling. This shows how, as well as our action to change 
how we use resources, we will work with citizens, communities and businesses to 
place.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



Page 9 of 16 
 

Our businesses are innovating too like using the recycling material we collect to 
make products we need and we will also take steps to provide support them to get 
the value from the resources we keep in use.  We will do this through for example 
including supporting sustainable purchasing in public procurement and ensuring that 
businesses get access to advice and support. In doing so, this will also help to retain 
value here in the Welsh economy whilst reducing emissions.  
 
Keeping resources in use will also support us to continue to take action on key 
materials which are often ends up as waste and cause damage to the environment. 
This includes taking action to phase out unnecessary single use items and halving 
food waste by 2025. We will be bringing forward measures to encourage more 
efficient resource use - from introducing a requirement on businesses and non-
domestic premises in Wales to separate items for recycling, to game-changing 
reforms to packaging and drinks containers.  
 
As reflected within the Programme for Government, one of those key measures is 
Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR). EPR seeks to implement the polluter pays 
principle by ensuring those businesses which place products on to the market bear 
the costs for the end of life management of those products post-consumer use.  This 
can include recovery of the full net costs for end of life waste collection and 
recycling. We will apply these EPR reforms to packaging first including a deposit 
return scheme for drink containers and we will publish the proposed final design of 
these reforms early in the New Year. We are working in partnership with the other 
governments across the UK and are also exploring how EPR reforms can potentially 
be applied to other items such as batteries, electrical and electronic equipment, 
motor vehicles, textiles and fishing gear. 
 
In addition, we are committed to bringing forward legislation to ban more single use 
plastics.  
 
Clean air 
 
Poor air quality contributes to poor health, with a pronounced impact on the most 
vulnerable. Maximising delivery of air quality objectives through behaviour change, 
for example active travel, is key. The development of a Clean Air Act for Wales will 
be informed by the responses to the White Paper consultation held earlier this year.  
 
Clean water 
 
Maintaining and enhancing our dynamic water ecosystem is central to tackling the 
wider strategic challenges we face. We need to ensure our drainage and sewerage 
systems are sustainable, managed effectively and that they are fit for purpose in 
terms of meeting changing demands.  To address these challenges we need to work 
in collaboration with a wide range of stakeholders. 
 
The Programme for Government makes a commitment to begin designation of 
Wales’ inland waters for recreation and strengthening water quality monitoring. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



Page 10 of 16 
 

We are working with a broad range of stakeholders, including Natural Resources 
Wales, Water Companies and the agricultural sector to ensure where improvements 
are needed to support cleaner inland waters (including rivers) action is taken. 
 
As part of this policy development we are considering a broad range of issues 
around the designation of inland bathing waters, including issues of access to water 
and water safety 
 
We want to make sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) mandatory on almost all 
new building developments.  This will relieve pressure on the sewer and drainage 
network by redirecting and slowing down the speed at which surface water enters 
the sewer system. It will help ensure storm overflows are only used as a last resort.  
 
The Programme for Government includes a specific commitment to enhance the 
SuDS legislative framework to provide additional environmental, biodiversity, well-
being and economic benefits to our communities.  
 
We are working with NRW and water companies in Wales to develop Drainage and 
Wastewater Management Plans. The plans will look at ways to address existing and 
future pressures on the sewer system, including population growth and climate 
change, to build a more resilient wastewater and drainage infrastructure.  
 
The plans will help ensure water companies invest strategically and transparently for 
a wastewater and treatment network that is resilient and affordable in the long and 
short term. DWMPs will provide the opportunity to adopt a multi-sector catchment 
approach where the water companies and stakeholders are able to integrate their 
investment and development plans 
Resilient rivers are essential for enhancing Wales’ biodiversity, enabling more 
recreational use and securing wider benefits to society and our economy. We are 
very concerned that the majority of Wales’ SAC rivers fail to meet phosphorus 
targets  
 
A cross sector approach is required to reduce phosphate levels in our waterways 
due to the differing patterns and different sources of pollution.  
 
A Management Oversight Group has been established to provide strategic direction 
and help expedite a number of areas. The Group has representatives from all 
relevant sectors. 

Flood protection 

 
Reducing the risk of flooding to people, properties and infrastructure in our 
communities is a significant priority. Across Wales, 245,000 properties are at risk of 
flooding, with a further 400 at risk from coastal erosion. The risks will only be 
exacerbated by the changing climate. Our National Strategy for Flood and Coastal 
Erosion sets out how we will manage the risks over the next 10 years. It focuses not 
only on reducing present risk, but also preventing issues for future generations 
through more informed planning decisions, the better management of water and 

Tudalen y pecyn 32

https://gov.wales/national-strategy-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-wales
https://gov.wales/national-strategy-flood-and-coastal-erosion-risk-management-wales


Page 11 of 16 
 

natural flood management. The storms of February 2020 highlighted the risks we 
face from our industrial heritage. 
 
Two Programme for Government commitments directly relate to the Flood and 
Coastal Erosion Risk Management policy and programme.  Firstly to fund additional 
flood protection for more than 45,000 homes and secondly to deliver nature-based 
flood management in all major river catchments to expand wetland and woodland 
habitats. 
 
This financial year we will invest over £65 million in flood risk management activities 
across Wales.  Investment in flood and coastal risk management, helps to directly 
address the impacts of climate change including rising sea levels and increased 
storm events. To support with achieving the commitment to fund additional protection 
to 45,000 homes we are developing a pipeline of capital flood and coastal erosion 
schemes to better protect homes across Wales.  
 
In terms of the commitment to deliver nature-based flood management, pilot projects 
have been ongoing over the past two financial years to better understand the 
benefits and barriers to delivering nature based flood risk management solutions.  To 
further deliver on this commitment, all schemes being developed through the capital 
programme are required to consider nature flood management as one of their 
options.   
 
Nature based solutions allow for measures to be put in place to reduce the risk of 
flooding which promote and encourage other environmental, biodiversity and 
ecological benefits, often providing habitats for species or improving water quality.  
This is also a low carbon option to reducing flood risk, using solutions such as tree 
planting, woody dams, peat restoration or the installation of attenuation areas to hold 
water in peak flows.  Given the increasing risk from flash flooding, it will become 
increasingly important to find better, more sustainable ways to manage run-off, often 
in places which have not traditionally been at high risk, including alongside 
agricultural land and in more rural communities, which are increasingly being 
affected by such events. 
 
Both of our Programme for Government commitments are improving the lives of 
people in Wales by reducing the risks they face from flooding and coastal erosion.  
The impacts of floods can have long term impacts on mental and physical health; 
therefore reducing the risk from flooding has a positive impact on mental health and 
reduces the associated impact on the health service.  
 

Coal Tip Safety 

The safety of our communities is paramount to the Welsh Government and we are 
continuing to work at pace to address coal tip safety and with a wide range of 
partners, to mobilise a wide ranging programme of work. 
 
In August, the Met Office published its most up to date analysis indicating that our 
climate has continued to warm with significant climate impacts now being felt across 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



Page 12 of 16 
 

the UK.  In addition, the latest independent Climate Change Risk Assessment for 
Wales (CCRA3) recognises the potential for climate impacts to increase the risk of 
future landslips, landslides and subsidence linked to historic mining activities.   
Increased rainfall can have a significant impact on disused coal tips. Old drainage 
systems, especially if they have fallen into disrepair, are unlikely to be able to handle 
predicted increased volumes of rainfall.   
 
Since the landslide at Tylorstown in February 2020, we have progressed an 
extensive programme of work on coal tip safety.  The First Minister established the 
Coal Tip Safety Task Force, which includes ourselves, the Coal Authority, local 
authorities and Natural Resources Wales and with our partners we are delivering on 
a wide programme of work. 
 
We have commissioned the Coal Authority to regularly inspect all high-risk coal tips 
and collect data on all disused coal tips in Wales. The third round of inspections of 
higher-risk rated tips commences in October and will run for 3 months. 
 
Local authorities have been asked to carry out all necessary maintenance works on 
coal tips, which have been identified in inspection reports. 
 
Working with the Coal Authority and local authorities we have arranged a number of 
technology trials on different tips to provide live data on any ground movement on 
high-risk tips to provide an early warning system for communities.  
 
Last year we commissioned the Law Commission to undertake a review of the 
legislative framework for coal tip safety in Wales.  The Commission’s consultation 
closed on 10 September.  This made it clear that the existing legislative framework is 
no longer suitable and does not provide the necessary level of management and 
oversight required for the more than 2,000 coal tips in Wales. 

 
The Law Commission are currently analysing the responses (74 received) and we 
are expecting the Commission to provide us with a report early in 2022.  The 
Commission’s review will provide vital evidence for the development of new Welsh 
legislation.   The Welsh Governments’ Programme for Government makes a 
commitment to introduce new legislation to provide a new regulatory framework for 
the management of disused coal tips.  
 
Until new legislation is in place, we will continue to work alongside local authorities, 
the Coal Authority and other partners to support the monitoring and maintenance 
work on disused coal tips.  
 
However, there is still more work to do and it’s absolutely essential we get a 
reclamation program underway to address those risks. 
 
Coal tips pre-date devolution, and Wales is disproportionately affected with nearly 
40% of all disused coal tips in Wales.  The reclamation costs are on a scale far in 
excess of anything anticipated when devolution began in 1999 and are not reflected 
in our current funding arrangements.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



Page 13 of 16 
 

We have consistently called for the UK Government to provide Wales with the 
fairness, flexibility and clarity needed to support and protect its communities and 
businesses, and reiterated that current funding does not reflect the scale of the 
issues Wales faces. 
 
The catastrophic flooding in Skewen was a wake-up call to us all. Homes were 
flooded at a rapid speed, and the impact of this has shocked the community. 
 
Public safety remains our top priority. The main outdoor clean-up work is complete 
and Neath Port Talbot and the Coal Authority are now leading the recovery work.   
The Coal Authority is supporting further clean-up and cleaning of private drains. 
Work to stabilise the blow-out, damaged mine shaft and construction of the new 
mine water management scheme is progressing. The Coal Authority has confirmed 
they expect these works will be completed by the end of December which will allow 
the road to be reopened. 
 
The Coal Authority will manage the new system in perpetuity with regular 
maintenance. 
 
It is only right that our communities who gave so much, live safely and are not 
financially hit by the negative legacy of coal mining. 
 
We welcome the increased payments from the Coal Authority to residents.  
However, as a reserved matter we continue to urge the Coal Authority and the UK 
Government to come to a fair and just conclusion that befits the upsetting situation 
the residents of Skewen have been placed. 

Transport 

Around the globe, the transport sector has come under increasing scrutiny as its 
carbon emissions remain stubbornly high. In Wales transport contributes 17% of 
greenhouse gas emissions. Welsh Government is determined to put transport 
emissions on a downward trajectory.  
 
The Wales Transport Strategy, Llwybr Newydd, published earlier this year, sets out 
that new pathway with a commitment to achieve a challenging target of 45% of 
journeys by public transport, walking and cycling by 2040. The present mode share 
of these sustainable modes of transport is just 32%, so this target requires a 
substantial uplift. Even so, Welsh Government recognises that this target may need 
to be raised further if the science of climate change demands it, and has committed 
to keep it under review.  
 
To achieve this mode shift target, walking and cycling must become the normal way 
of making shorter journeys. Welsh Government has led Britain by establishing an 
Active Travel Act which requires local authorities to plan fully connected networks of 
safe and attractive walking and cycling routes. Active travel funding from Welsh 
Government has been ramped up to support walking and cycling and is set to 
increase further as active travel infrastructure construction accelerates to put in place 
the local authority network plans. 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



Page 14 of 16 
 

 
These active travel plans are backed by Welsh Government’s trail-blazing proposal 
for 20mph to become the default speed limit throughout residential areas in Wales. 
The first phase of pilot schemes has laid the way for the forthcoming roll out to local 
authorities right across Wales. As a result, walking and cycling to school, work, 
recreation and amenities is set to become safer and more attractive where millions of 
people live. 
 
In more rural areas, where major roads between settlements can be major obstacles 
for walking and cycling, Welsh Government will work towards ‘Safe Cycling from 
Village to Town’ giving villages safe cycling access to the nearest town and creating 
hub-and-spoke active travel corridors connecting market towns and other significant 
local centres to surrounding villages and outlying developments. 
 
For longer journeys, car journeys must be replaced by public transport. This means 
we need a transformation in our public transport system. Welsh Government is 
committed to extend the reach of Wales bus services to provide options where 
people cannot presently travel by bus. We will invest to create a network of bus 
services that is fully integrated with other modes of public transport and is reliable, 
affordable, and easy to use. To do this Welsh Government will legislate to ensure 
bus services are purposely planned and delivered for the best public interest.  
 
We will publish our bus delivery plan and white paper late in 2021. This will set out 
our plans to transform Wales’ bus network, making it more reliable, accessible and 
affordable.   
 
The bus fleet itself must switch to ultra-low emissions. To propel this transition, 
Welsh Government has set a stretching deadline of 2028. To decarbonise the 
railway in Wales, Welsh Government will work with Network Rail and UK 
Government to roll out rail electrification across Wales. 
 
Three Metro systems are being planned across Wales to create integrated public 
transport systems, with construction underway for the South Wales Metro. These 
systems will make public transport an attractive and practicable travel option for 
many places and many people that presently lack feasible public transport choices.  
 
We are  establishing a Global Centre of Rail Excellence - the delivery company has 
been established and the other elements of the funding and ownership structure are 
in development.  This centre will create jobs and train up a high-skilled workforce. 
 
As well as cutting transport emissions by shifting journeys to sustainable modes of 
transport, Welsh Government will seek to encourage remote working that cuts out 
the commute completely. Welsh Government has set a target of 30% of the 
workforce working remotely on a regular basis. Our Remote Working Strategy will be 
published in the Autumn. This will set out how we will move towards greater levels of 
remote working and develop a network of remote  working hubs in communities 
across Wales.  
 
For those journeys that continue to be made by car, acceleration of the transition to 
electric vehicles is essential in order to meet climate targets. Welsh Government will 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



Page 15 of 16 
 

shortly launch its EV Charging Plan. This will lay out a plan to put in place charging 
infrastructure across Wales, including sufficiently strong grid connections, and a set 
of measures to increase investment and innovation. 
 
However, even with the most rapid feasible transition to electric vehicles, it will be 
necessary for vehicle use to fall in order to meet climate targets. Welsh Government 
recognises that this means that it is necessary to do things differently, and in 
particular to put a stop to projects that increase transport emissions.  
 
Such considerations were part of the reason for cancelling the proposed additional 
M4 route across the Gwent Levels. The South East Wales Transport Commission 
was set up to establish a package of public transport and active travel alternatives to 
the M4. Its recommendations are now being readied for implementation by a delivery 
unit chaired by Simon Burns. The package of recommendations is equally applicable 
to some other parts of Wales and Welsh Government will look to promote similar 
packages of improvements in those areas. 
 
Welsh Government has established an independent panel to carry out a review of 
other planned road projects, to assess their potential carbon impacts and make 
recommendations on whether these should continue or should be reconsidered, 
altered or halted in the context of the Climate Emergency. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Digital Infrastructure 

 
Responsibility for connectivity lies with the UK Government but we continue to step 
in to provide connectivity. 7,508 premises have now been given access to full fibre in 
north Wales under our £56 million full fibre roll-out. We continue to provide 
connectivity solutions through our Local Broadband Fund and ABC scheme. 
 As a result, 94% of premises across Wales can access a superfast broadband 
service and 19% of homes in Wales have access to full-fibre connections. The UK 
Government target is for 85% of premises in the UK to have access to gigabit 
capable broadband by 2025. 90% of Wales has access to good 4G geographic 
coverage from at least one of the mobile operators and 60% has coverage from all 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



Page 16 of 16 
 

four operators. The Shared Rural Network project aims to increase this to 95% good 
4G coverage from at least one operator and 80 per cent by all four operators in 
Wales by 2026. 
 
Since 2006 the Welsh Government has overseen a pan-public sector contract to 
deliver public sector connectivity to 120 organisations covering around 5,000 
locations such as schools, colleges, universities, fire services, police, hospitals, GP 
surgeries, local authority buildings. 
 
The Welsh Government is the lead consortium partner in a ‘5G Tech Valleys’ mobile 
technology innovation project focussed on rural connectivity. The project is delivering 
5G infrastructure and innovation in parts of Blaenau Gwent and Monmouthshire 
running until March 2022.  The programme is considered to be a ‘pathfinder’ to 
inform potential future mobile network deployment models and a potential 
opportunity to scale such services. 

Digital and Data 

The Welsh Government published a Digital Strategy for Wales in March 2021.  It 
sets out our ambition for people in Wales to experience modern, efficient and 
streamlined public services and at the same time stimulate innovation in our 
economy and support outcomes today and for future generations.  A separate 
Delivery Plan was developed to support the Strategy. The Strategy’s vision is: Digital 
in Wales: improving the lives of everyone through collaboration, innovation and 
better public services. 
 
The Centre for Digital Public Services was established as an arms-length body in 
June 2020 to improve capability in digital public services and support the public 
sector in taking forward projects. The Centre is delivering a programme of digital 
awareness training to over senior leaders and elected members across the public 
sector. It is also developing common service standards and sharing best practice to 
drive cross-sector collaborative working which meets with the needs and 
expectations of users.  
 
Through supporting remote working, designing public services effectively, using data 
smartly and modernising the technology we use we can support our ambition to 
reduce carbon usage and achieve our net zero targets by 2050, although we will 
need to continue to consider the net effect of driving up data usage. Digital 
transformation can help us respond to the climate emergency by reducing the need 
to travel and ensuring our homes are energy efficient. The emergence of the internet 
of things also raises huge potential for smart use of data to drive forward 
improvements in public services, economic innovation and decarbonisation. 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Minister for Climate Change 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru 
Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Eich cyf/Your ref 
Ein cyf/Our ref  

28 Medi 2021 

Annwyl Llŷr, 

Diolch am eich adroddiad ar 23 Medi ar y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar gyfer 
Bil Amgylchedd y DU.  

Fe welwch fy ymateb i’ch argymhellion yn Atodiad A. 

Yn gywir 

Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Minister for Climate Change  

Tudalen y pecyn 39

Eitem 4.1

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales


 
 
Atodiad A 
 

Argymhelliad  
 

Ymateb  

Argymhelliad 1.  
Dylai'r Gweinidog ymgysylltu â 
Llywodraeth y DU a'r 
gweinyddiaethau datganoledig 
eraill i geisio cytundeb i ddiwygio 
Bil y DU i ddisodli'r pwerau 
'cydredol plws' â phwerau i 
weinyddiaethau'r DU wneud 
rheoliadau ar y cyd wrth weithredu 
polisïau ledled y DU. Dylai'r 
rheoliadau hyn fod yn destun 
gwaith craffu gan bob un o 
ddeddfwrfeydd y DU  
 

Gwrthod  
 
Rwyf wedi esbonio’n fanwl wrth y Pwyllgor ynghylch 
priodoldeb y pwerau cydredol plws yn y Bil.  Dim 
ond os ymdrinnir â meysydd ar lefel y DU y 
cymerwn y pwerau hyn.  
 
Bydd cynnwys y diwygiad i Atodlen 7B o Ddeddf 
Llywodraeth Cymru 2006 yn sicrhau bod Senedd 
Cymru’n gallu dileu swyddogaethau’r Ysgrifennydd 
Gwladol mewn perthynas â materion datganoledig 
Cymru heb orfod cael caniatâd yr Ysgrifennydd 
Gwladol.  
 
Rwyf wedi ymrwymo i wneud rheoliadau yn Senedd 
Cymru lle bynnag y bo modd ac wedi dangos yr 
ymrwymiad hwnnw drwy gynllunio i gyflwyno 
deddfwriaeth Gymreig mewn perthynas â chynllun 
Cyfrifoldeb Estynedig Cynhyrchwyr am ddeunydd 
pacio a’r Cynllun Dychwelyd Ernes ar gyfer 
cynwysyddion diod. 
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol ychwanegol o ganlyniad i ymateb i’r 
argymhelliad hwn.  
 

Argymhelliad 2. Os na all y 
Gweinidog sicrhau gwelliannau i 
Fil y DU, dylai   
 

 roi ymrwymiad y bydd y pwerau 
'cydredol plws' yn cael eu dileu 
cyn gynted â phosibl; a  

 nodi ei safbwynt ar sefydlu 
gweithdrefn ffurfiol i 
lywodraethu cyfranogiad y 
Senedd mewn penderfyniadau 
cydsynio mewn perthynas â 
phwerau 'cydredol plws' ym Mil 
y DU.  

 
 

Derbyn  
 
Mae Egwyddor 7 y canllawiau i Weinidogion Cymru 
ar gymryd pwerau cydredol yn nodi y dylid dileu 
swyddogaethau cydredol cyn gynted ag y daw cyfle.  
 
Yn unol â'r canllawiau hyn, byddaf yn cadw golwg ar 
y gofyn am y swyddogaethau cydredol plws hyn.  
 
Nid wyf yn credu bod angen sefydlu gweithdrefn 
ffurfiol i lywodraethu cyfranogiad y Senedd mewn 
penderfyniadau cydsynio mewn perthynas â 
phwerau cydredol plws ym Miliau’r DU. Rydym wedi 
ymrwymo i ysgrifennu at y pwyllgorau polisi 
perthnasol i'w hysbysu o fwriad i gydsynio, a, lle bo 
amser yn caniatáu, i roi cyfle i'r Senedd fynegi barn 
cyn i’r Gweinidogion roi caniatâd. 
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Adolygir hyn, a bydd 
angen adnoddau polisi a chyfreithiol i wneud y 
newidiadau deddfwriaethol angenrheidiol er mwyn 
gallu dileu swyddogaethau cydredol plws wedi 
hynny.   

Tudalen y pecyn 40



 

Argymhelliad 3. Rhaid i 
Lywodraeth Cymru ymrwymo i 
sicrhau bod amser ar gael ar gyfer 
Bil llywodraethu amgylcheddol y 
Senedd yn ail flwyddyn ei rhaglen 
ddeddfwriaethol  

Derbyn yr Egwyddor  
 
Mae mynd i'r afael ag argyfyngau’r hinsawdd a natur 
yn flaenoriaeth i'r Llywodraeth hon.  
 
Nododd y Cwnsler Cyffredinol flwyddyn gyntaf ein 
rhaglen ddeddfwriaethol uchelgeisiol ar 6 Gorffennaf 
a chaiff cyhoeddiad ar y blynyddoedd i ddod ei 
wneud gan y Prif Weinidog maes o law. Mae 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymrwymo mewn egwyddor 
i ddeddfu yn y maes hwn ond mater i'r Llywodraeth 
fydd penderfynu ar amseriad y Bil. 
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol ychwanegol o ganlyniad i dderbyn yr 
argymhelliad hwn.  
 

Argymhelliad 4. Rhaid i'r 
Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i'r Pwyllgor 
cyn pen chwe mis ar ôl cyhoeddi'r 
adroddiad hwn ar y cynnydd a 
wnaed tuag at ddatblygu Bil 
llywodraethu amgylcheddol y 
Senedd.  

Derbyn  
 
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn yr argymhelliad hwn.  
 
 

Argymhelliad 5. Rhaid i 
Lywodraeth Cymru ymrwymo i 
gyflwyno targedau bioamrywiaeth 
statudol ar y cyfle cyntaf sydd ar 
gael. 
 

Derbyn yr egwyddor  
 
Caiff penderfyniad ei wneud erbyn diwedd COP 15, 

sef ar hyn o bryd Mai 2022.  

 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn egwyddor yr 
argymhelliad hwn.  
 

Argymhelliad 6. Dylai'r Gweinidog 
egluro:  
 

 ai Bil llywodraethu 
amgylcheddol y Senedd yw'r 
unig gyfrwng addas o fewn 
rhaglen ddeddfwriaethol 
Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer y 
Chweched Senedd i wneud 
darpariaeth ar gyfer targedau 
bioamrywiaeth statudol; ac  

 

 os felly, sut y bydd hyn yn 
effeithio ar amseriad cyflwyno'r 
Bil, os bydd unrhyw effaith.  

 
 

Gwrthod  
 

Caiff penderfyniad ei wneud erbyn diwedd COP 15, 

sef ar hyn o bryd Mai 2022.  

 

Caiff cyhoeddiad ei wneud am ddyfodol y rhaglen 

gan y Prif Weinidog maes o law.  

 
 
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol ychwanegol o ganlyniad i ymateb i’r 
argymhelliad hwn.  
 
 
 

Argymhelliad 7. Rhaid i'r 
Gweinidog nodi pa gamau y mae'n 
bwriadu eu cymryd i sicrhau bod 
digon o adnoddau a chapasiti yn ei 

Derbyn yr Egwyddor  
 
Rwy’n monitro hynt y gwaith yn fy adran i nodi’r 
risgiau ar gyfer ei gyflawni a lleihau’r risgiau hynny.  Tudalen y pecyn 41



hadran, ac adran gyfreithiol 
Llywodraeth Cymru, i gyflawni 
ymrwymiadau deddfwriaethol 
cyfredol. 

Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i ymateb i’r argymhelliad hwn.  
 
 

Argymhelliad 8. Rhaid i'r 
Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i'r Pwyllgor 
ar unrhyw drafodaethau y mae 
wedi'u cael, neu'n bwriadu eu cael, 
gyda Llywodraeth y DU ar 
ddefnyddio Biliau'r DU yn sesiwn 
Seneddol 2021-22 i ddeddfu dros 
Gymru ar faterion sy'n dod o fewn 
ei phortffolio  
 

Derbyn yr Egwyddor  
 
Byddwn fel arfer yn cydweithio â phwyllgorau ar ôl 
cyhoeddi’r papurau gwyn a’r ymgynghoriadau ar 
ddeddfwriaeth y DU,  
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i ymateb i’r argymhelliad hwn.  
 

Argymhelliad 9. Dylai'r Gweinidog 
adrodd yn ôl i'r Pwyllgor ar 
ganlyniad ymgynghoriadau mis 
Mawrth 2021 ar Gyfrifoldeb 
Estynedig Cynhyrchwyr am 
ddeunydd pacio a’r Cynllun 
Dychwelyd Ernes, ac 
ymgynghoriad mis Gorffennaf 
2020 ar leihau plastigau untro, cyn 
gynted ag sy'n ymarferol.  
 

Derbyn  
 
Byddaf yn cyhoeddi’r Crynodeb o’r Ymatebion, gan 
gynnwys y camau nesaf, i ymgynghoriad Gorffennaf 
2020 ar leihau plastigau untro ym mis Hydref.  
Gallaf ddweud wrth y Pwyllgor bod trwch yr 
ymatebion o blaid cyflwyno gwaharddiad ar yr 
eitemau hyn.  
 
O ran Cynllun Cyfrifoldeb Cynhyrchwyr am 
ddeunydd pacio a’r Cynllun Dychwelyd Ernes ar 
gyfer cynwysyddion diod, rydym ar hyn o bryd yn 
gweithio gyda Defra a'r gwledydd datganoledig eraill 
i gwblhau ein hymateb i'r ymgynghoriadau.  Byddwn 
yn cyhoeddi ymatebion ar y cyd maes o law ac yn 
rhoi gwybod i’r pwyllgor pan fyddant ar gael. 
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn yr argymhelliad hwn.  
 

Argymhelliad 10. Rhaid i 
Lywodraeth Cymru ymrwymo i 
gyflwyno 'Cynllun Dychwelyd 
Ernes hollgynhwysol' yng 
Nghymru, ni waeth a yw 
Llywodraeth y DU a 
Gweithrediaeth Gogledd Iwerddon 
yn penderfynu ar gynllun sy'n 
gulach ei gwmpas ai peidio.  

Derbyn yr Egwyddor  
 
Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn ffafrio cynllun 
Dychwelyd Ernes (DRS) ar gyfer ‘pob’ cynhwysydd 
hyd at 3lt o ran maint: poteli plastig gwydr a PET, 
caniau dur ac alwminiwm. 
 
Nid yw Llywodraeth y DU a Llywodraeth Gogledd 
Iwerddon wedi penderfynu eto ar ba fath o gynllun 
i’w ddewis ar gyfer eu gwledydd.   
 
Rydym yn parhau'n ymrwymedig i weithio mewn 
partneriaeth â Llywodraeth y DU ac Adran 
Amaethyddiaeth, Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig 
Gogledd Iwerddon fel bod gennym gynllun mor 
gyson â phosibl ledled Cymru, Lloegr a Gogledd 
Iwerddon. Rydym hefyd yn edrych yn ofalus ar sut y 
bydd angen i'r cynllun ryngweithio a gweithredu 
gyda DRS yr Alban.  Mae hyn yn cydnabod: 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 42



 Yr heriau i fusnesau a fydd yn gorfod cymryd 
rhan yn y cynllun sydd â chadwyni cyflenwi 
integredig ar draws ffiniau.  

 Heriau ymarferol ei roi ar waith.  

 Yr angen i leihau dryswch i ddefnyddwyr sy'n 
byw ger ffiniau Cymru/Lloegr a Lloegr/Yr 
Alban. 

 
Os bydd Lloegr a Gogledd Iwerddon yn penderfynu 
ar DRS gwahanol yn eu gwledydd, bydd angen inni 
asesu goblygiadau hyn o ran rhoi’r cynllun ar waith 
a’i ddyluniad .   
 
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn egwyddor yr 
argymhelliad hwn. Ystyrir goblygiadau ariannol y 
cynllun wrth ddatblygu’r cynllun a ddewisir. Y 
busnesau fydd yn gorfod cymryd rhan ynddo fydd yn 
ysgwyddo’r costau o’i roi ar waith.   
 
 

Argymhelliad 11. Dylai'r 
Gweinidog roi diweddariad i'r 
Pwyllgor am y gwaith sy'n cael ei 
wneud i asesu'r sylfaen dystiolaeth 
ar gyfer treth neu dâl ar eitemau 
plastig untro. Dylai hefyd egluro 
pryd y bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn 
debygol o fod mewn sefyllfa i 
wneud penderfyniad terfynol ar yr 
opsiwn a ffefrir ganddi. 
 

Derbyn  
 
Mae'r gwaith hwn wedi dod i stop ar y funud 
oherwydd diffyg adnoddau. Ar hyn o bryd, ni allaf 
bennu amserlen ar gyfer y gwaith hwn. Fy ffocws ar 
hyn o bryd yw cyflawni ein hymrwymiad yn y 
Rhaglen Lywodraethu i wahardd y plastigau untro 
mwyaf cyffredin a geir yn yr amgylchedd morol. 
 
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn yr argymhelliad hwn. 
 

Argymhelliad 12. Dylai'r 
Gweinidog egluro pam ei bod yn 
credu ei bod yn briodol cymryd y 
pwerau i godi tâl am blastigau 
untro ym Mil y DU pan nad yw'n 
eglur a fydd angen y pwerau hynny  
  

Derbyn  
 
Yn ein Strategaeth Economi Gylchol, Mwy nag 
Ailgylchu, rydym wedi ymrwymo i ystyried sut y 
gallem ddefnyddio’r pwerau newydd i godi tâl ar 
gwpanau plastig untro a chynwysyddion bwyd. Trwy 
gymryd y pwerau hyn ym Mil y DU, rydym yn cael 
cadw’r opsiwn hwn fel arf i gyflawni ein hymrwymiad 
i leihau effaith amgylcheddol plastigau untro 
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn yr argymhelliad hwn. 
 
 

Argymhelliad 13. Dylai 
Llywodraeth Cymru roi pwysau ar 
weinyddiaethau eraill y DU i 
gytuno ar ffordd ymlaen a fyddai'n 
ei galluogi i gyflwyno gwaharddiad 

Derbyn  
 
Mae trafodaethau rhwng llywodraethau’n mynd 
rhagddynt ynghylch y gwaharddiadau fel rhan o 
Gytundebau’r Fframwaith Cyffredin ar ôl Brexit.  
Rydyn ni’n archwilio pob opsiwn.  Rydyn ni’n Tudalen y pecyn 43



ar blastigau untro sy'n cyflawni ei 
huchelgais llawn o ran polisi. 
 

ymrwymo i wireddu’n llawn uchelgais ein polisi ar 
blastigau.  
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn yr argymhelliad hwn. 
 

Argymhelliad 14. Dylai'r 
Gweinidog roi'r wybodaeth 
ddiweddaraf i'r Pwyllgor, cyn pen 
dau fis ar ôl cyhoeddi'r adroddiad 
hwn, ar y cynnydd a wnaed wrth 
gyflwyno cynigion ar gyfer 
gwahardd plastigau untro  

Derbyn  
 
Rydym yn bwriadu cyhoeddi ein crynodeb o'r 
ymatebion ym mis Hydref. Bydd yn nodi'n fanwl y 
camau nesaf ar y mater hwn. Bydd y pwyllgor yn 
deall bod cyflawni'r polisi hwn yn fater cymhleth 
oherwydd Deddf Marchnad Fewnol y DU. 
 
Rwyf wedi ymrwymo i wireddu uchelgais ein polisi i 
wahardd y defnydd o'r plastigau untro sy’n cael eu 
taflu’n sbwriel fwyaf.  
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn yr argymhelliad hwn. 
 
 

Argymhelliad 15. Dylai'r 
Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i'r Pwyllgor 
ar ganlyniad ymgynghoriad 
Llywodraeth Cymru ar y Papur 
Gwyn ar y Bil Aer Glân (Cymru) 
cyn gynted ag sy'n ymarferol. 
Dylai'r adroddiad gynnwys 
amserlen ddangosol ar gyfer y 
camau sy'n weddill o ddatblygiad y 
Bil. 
 

Derbyn yr egwyddor  
 
Mae swyddogion wrthi’n dadansoddi’r ymatebion i'r 
ymgynghoriad ar gynigion y Papur Gwyn ar gyfer Bil 
Aer Glân i Gymru. Cafwyd cefnogaeth i'r cynigion 
a'n nod yw cyhoeddi'r crynodeb o'r ymatebion erbyn 
diwedd mis Hydref 2021. 
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn egwyddor yr 
argymhelliad hwn. 
 

Argymhelliad 16. Dylai 
Llywodraeth Cymru ymrwymo i 
gyflwyno'r Bil Aer Glân (Cymru) yn 
ail flwyddyn ei rhaglen 
ddeddfwriaethol. 
 

Derbyn yr egwyddor  
 

Mae mynd i'r afael â'r argyfyngau hinsawdd a natur 
yn flaenoriaeth i'r Llywodraeth hon.  
 
Nododd y Cwnsler Cyffredinol flwyddyn gyntaf ein 
rhaglen ddeddfwriaethol uchelgeisiol ar 6 Gorffennaf 
a chaiff cyhoeddiad ar y blynyddoedd i ddod ei 
wneud gan y Prif Weinidog maes o law. Mae 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymrwymo mewn egwyddor 
i ddeddfu yn y maes hwn ond mater i'r Llywodraeth 
fydd penderfynu ar amseriad y Bil. 
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i ymateb i’r argymhelliad hwn. 
 
 

Argymhelliad 17. Dylai’r 
Gweinidog ymrwymo i ymgynghori 
â rhanddeiliaid cyn gwneud 

Derbyn  
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn yr argymhelliad hwn. Tudalen y pecyn 44



rheoliadau gan ddefnyddio pwerau 
o dan Ran 5.  

 
 

Argymhelliad 18. Dylai'r 
Gweinidog egluro pam mae’r 
pwerau cyfarwyddo yn Rhan 5 yn 
angenrheidiol, a nodi'r meini prawf 
y bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn eu 
defnyddio i benderfynu a ddylid 
arfer y pwerau hyn.  

Derbyn  
 
Mae'r pwerau Cyfarwyddo yn Rhan 5 yn galluogi 
Gweinidogion Cymru i gyfarwyddo ymgymerwyr 
carthffosiaeth i nodi’r cyfnod cynllunio yn eu 
cynlluniau. Maent yn rhoi cyfarwyddyd hefyd i 
baratoi cynllun newydd os yw'r adolygiad blynyddol 
o'r cynlluniau yn dangos bod yr amgylchiadau wedi 
newid yn sylweddol.  
 
Maent hefyd yn rhoi pwerau i'r Gweinidogion ei 
gwneud yn ofynnol i'r cynlluniau fynd i'r afael ag 
unrhyw faterion penodol nad ydynt wedi'u rhestru yn 
y ddeddfwriaeth sylfaenol, a'r ffurf y mae'n rhaid i 
gynllun ei chymryd. Cyn cyhoeddi unrhyw 
gyfarwyddiadau, byddwn yn ymgynghori â'r 
ymgymerwyr dŵr a charthffosiaeth, CNC, a 
rhanddeiliaid allweddol eraill.   
   
Mae Rhan 5 hefyd yn rhoi pwerau i'r Gweinidog allu 
cyfarwyddo dau neu fwy o ymgymerwyr dŵr i baratoi 
a chyhoeddi cynnig ar y cyd er mwyn gwella'r gwaith 
o reoli a datblygu adnoddau dŵr. Nid oes unrhyw 
gynlluniau ar hyn o bryd i gyhoeddi Cyfarwyddyd o'r 
fath, a dim ond ar ôl ymgynghori â'r ymgymerwyr 
dŵr yr effeithir arnynt, CNC ac Ofwat y byddai'n 
gwneud hynny.  
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn yr argymhelliad hwn. 
 
 

Argymhelliad 19. Dylai'r 
Gweinidog egluro ymhellach pam y 
cred ei bod yn briodol defnyddio 
cytundeb anffurfiol nad yw'n 
rhwymol i ddatrys yr anghydfod â 
Llywodraeth y DU ynghylch 
cymhwysedd deddfwriaethol o ran 
y darpariaethau mewn perthynas â 
defnyddio nwyddau coedwigaeth. 
 

Derbyn  
 
Gwnaethom roi ein dadl o blaid cymhwysedd yn gryf 
i Defra ond gwnaethant ei gwrthod gan fynnu nad 
oes angen caniatâd. Mae'n dilyn felly nad ydynt yn 
cydnabod bod gennym rôl ffurfiol wrth ddatblygu'r is-
ddeddfwriaeth. Fodd bynnag, er gwaethaf hyn, 
rydym wedi trafod cynnwys polisi ar ddatblygu'r is-
ddeddfwriaeth a chael cadarnhad ysgrifenedig y 
byddant yn cadw at yr ymrwymiad hwn. 
 
Yng ngoleuni hyn, mae swyddogion Llywodraeth 
Cymru wedi cyfarfod â thîm polisi Defra yn rheolaidd 
i drafod datblygu ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus i’w 
gynnal ar lefel y DU yn ail hanner eleni ar y 
rheoliadau. Y camau nesaf fydd gweithio gyda Defra 
wrth i'r ymgynghoriad ddatblygu a chynghori ar bwy 
y dylid ymgynghori â nhw yng Nghymru.  
 
Goblygiadau ariannol – Nid oes goblygiadau 
ariannol o ganlyniad i dderbyn yr argymhelliad hwn. 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru 
Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Vaughan Gething AS/MS 
Gweinidog yr Economi 
Minister for Economy 

Ein cyf/Our ref VG/0596/21 

Paul Davies AS 

Cadeirydd, Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig 

Llyr Gruffydd AS 
Cadeirydd, Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 

Delyth Jewell AS 
Cadeirydd, Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon, a Chysylltiadau 
Rhyngwladol 

4 Hydref 2021 

Annwyl Cadeirydd, 

O ganlyniad uniongyrchol i ymadael â’r UE, mae Model Gweithredu Ffiniau Llywodraeth y 
DU yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i'r holl nwyddau iechydol a ffytoiechydol sy'n dod i mewn i'r DU 
fod yn destun gwiriadau mewn Safleoedd Rheoli Ffiniau dynodedig. Heb y gwiriadau hyn, ni 
fydd bwyd, planhigion, cynhyrchion sy'n tarddu o anifeiliaid ac anifeiliaid byw yn gallu dod i 
mewn o Weriniaeth Iwerddon i'r DU drwy borthladdoedd Cymru.  

Cyflwynodd Llywodraeth y DU y polisi i'r llywodraeth ddarparu Safleoedd Rheoli Ffiniau lle 
nad oes gan borthladdoedd y gallu i ddarparu ar gyfer y seilwaith newydd o fewn eu cwrtil. 
Mae hyn yn berthnasol i nifer o borthladdoedd ledled y DU, gan gynnwys Dover a Thwnnel 
y Sianel yn Lloegr; Caergybi, Doc Penfro ac Abergwaun yng Nghymru; a Cairnryan yn yr 
Alban. Etifeddodd Llywodraeth Cymru y ddarpariaeth yng Nghymru ar ddiwedd 2020. 

Cyflawni Safleoedd Rheoli Ffiniau ar gyfer porthladdoedd Cymru yw un o'r rhaglenni 
cyflenwi seilwaith mwyaf a mwyaf cymhleth y mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn ymwneud ag ef. 
Mae'n cynrychioli ymrwymiad ariannol ac ymrwymiad o ran cyflenwi sylweddol sy'n 
ychwanegol at y setliad presennol gan Lywodraeth y DU. O’r herwydd mae'n rhan o gynnig 
Adolygiad Llywodraeth Cymru o Wariant i Drysorlys EM am y cyllid angenrheidiol i 
ddarparu'r seilwaith hanfodol hwn ar gyfer ffyniant a chysylltedd hirdymor economi Cymru 
ac economi ehangach y DU.  

Ynghlwm wrth y llythyr hwn mae tair dogfen sy’n anelu at roi trosolwg i chi o ofynion y 
Safleoedd Rheoli Ffiniau a'r cynnydd o ran cyflawni yng Ngogledd a De-orllewin Cymru. 
Mae'r pecyn briffio yn cynnwys:  

• Nodyn briffio cefndir sy'n nodi pam mae angen Safleoedd Rheoli Ffiniau a'u
swyddogaeth.

• Papur briffio technegol ar gynnydd ac amcangyfrifon cost lefel uchel.

Tudalen y pecyn 47

Eitem 4.2

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Vaughan.Gething@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Vaughan.Gething@gov.wales
https://senedd.cymru/pwyllgorau/pwyllgor-yr-economi-masnach-a-materion-gwledig/


• Copi o'r datganiad ysgrifenedig diweddar gan yr Arglwydd Frost ar newidiadau
unochrog i ddyddiadau rheoli ffiniau sy'n ymwneud â nwyddau iechydol a
ffytoiechydol.

Rwy'n gobeithio bod hyn yn ddefnyddiol a byddwn yn falch o'i drafod gyda chi. 

Yn gywir,  

Vaughan Gething AS/MS 
Gweinidog yr Economi 
Minister for Economy  

Tudalen y pecyn 48



Border Control Posts in Wales 
Background Briefing Note  
September 2021 
 
 
 

 

United Kingdom’s Border Operating Model:  

The Border Operating Model (BOM), published in June 2020 and revised in July 2021, 

outlines the UK Government’s border arrangements for imports and exports following 

the UK’s exit from the European Union and the end of the transition period.  

Part of the BOM consists of ‘additional requirements’ for certain goods. These relate 

to a number of devolved responsibilities, such as Sanitary and Phytosanitary (SPS) 

controls.  In this case, various checks are being introduced to protect bio-security: to 

protect animal and public health, and animal welfare and to control disease, such as 

animal diseases and invasive plants. 

The additional requirements for imports are to be implemented according to a phased 

approach, to allow time to establish necessary infrastructure at points of entry (POEs) 

to Great Britain (GB). The measures will be introduced for a variety of goods in three 

distinct stages separated by about 3 months each. 

The border is a confluence of devolved and reserved functions, multiple agencies, new 

infrastructure and systems, and new capabilities. The Border Operating Model does 

not apply to Northern Ireland where separate arrangements are in place.  

Key Stages for the Introduction of Border Checks: 

• The requirement for pre-notification of agri-food imports will be introduced on 1 

January 2022 as opposed to 1 October 2021.  

• The new requirements for Export Health Certificates, which were due to be 

introduced on 1 October 2021, will now be introduced on 1 July 2022.  

• Phytosanitary Certificates and physical checks on SPS goods at Border Control 

Posts, due to be introduced on 1 January 2022, will now be introduced on 1 

July 2022.  

What is a Border Control Post?  

A Border Control Post (BCP) is an inspection post designated and approved in line 

with retained EU legislation for carrying out checks on animals, animal products, plants 

and plant products arriving from third countries at the GB border. These checks are 

carried out to protect animal and public health, and animal welfare and control disease. 

Live animals, animal products, plants, plant products and wood from the EU will need 

to enter Great Britain (England, Wales and Scotland) via a border control post (BCP) 

from March 2022.  

This rule already applies to those animals and goods coming from a country outside 

the EU, sometimes referred to as Rest of World (ROO) trade. 

To be designated by the competent authority, BCPs must comply with specific 

requirements on facilities, equipment and staff. For example, a BCP must have: 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



Border Control Posts in Wales 
Background Briefing Note  
September 2021 
 
 
 

 

• sufficient number of suitably qualified staff 

• premises and facilities appropriate to the nature of volume of 

consignments, 

• equipment to enable the performance of checks, including IT equipment 

• access to the service of official laboratories 

• arrangements in place to prevent risk of cross contamination and comply 

with biosecurity standards 

These requirements are set out in Article 64(3) of Regulation (EU) 2017/625 on official 

controls (OCR). 

To comply with biosecurity standards, a BCP must also meet specific requirements 

for: 

• unloading areas 

• inspection rooms/areas 

• storage facilities 

• changing rooms 

These requirements are set out in Commission Regulation 2019/1014. 

 

Why is Welsh Government Developing Border Control Posts?  

Without appropriate BCP facilities, the relevant type of goods cannot be imported at 

that port.  Not all ports import the full range of SPS goods (for example few ports 

enable the import of live animals other than pets).   

The investment in BCP facilities would normally be a commercial investment decision 

for ports with the Government’s responsibility (UK Government in England and Welsh 

Ministers in Wales) limited to designating the facilities (ensuring their compliance with 

the OCR).  

The Border Operating Model (BOM) sets out the UK Government’s approach to 

introducing a checking regime for EU SPS goods, including the commitment that, 

where facilities could not be accommodated within the boundary of the port, inland 

facilities would be provided by the Government.  

This commitment applied to Eurotunnel, the port of Dover, Holyhead, Pembroke Dock, 

Fishguard and the Scottish port of Cairnryan. 

Tudalen y pecyn 50

https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/PDF/?uri=CELEX:32017R0625&from=EN
https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/PDF/?uri=CELEX:32017R0625&from=EN
https://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-content/EN/TXT/PDF/?uri=CELEX:32019R1014&from=EN


Border Control Posts in Wales 
Background Briefing Note  
September 2021 
 
 
 

 

Where are the EU Facing Ports in Wales?  

The ports of Holyhead, Fishguard and Pembroke 

Dock all accept a range of SPS goods. To be able to 

facilitate the import of such goods into the United 

Kingdom from the Republic of Ireland or indirectly from 

the rest of the EU, BCPs will be required.   

As well as the import of SPS goods into Wales, Welsh 

ports act as gateways connecting the Republic of 

Ireland to the rest of GB and Europe. 

For accompanied Ro-Ro (roll on, roll off) freight 

Holyhead is second only to Dover, and the 5th busiest 

in the UK handling 6% of the total UK Ro-Ro freight 

each year. Holyhead is ranked 1st for accompanied 

and 4th for unaccompanied Ro-Ro freight traffic when 

considering just the Irish Sea ports. Pembroke Dock and Fishguard are far smaller, 

with two ferries each every 24 hours each. 

 

 

What Does a Border Control Posts Look Like?  

A typical BCP will be formed from large modular steel 

sheds with hydraulic dock levelers for unloading 

vehicles. It will incorporate internal inspection spaces 

with temperature-controlled storage and product 

separation. In addition, it will provide office 

accommodation and welfare areas for staff.  

The Holyhead BCP is expected to handle no more 

than 25 checks per day, whilst 10 checks per day are 

expected to be completed for the South West Wales 

ports. In comparison, the BCP serving Kent ports 

might check in the region of 400 consignments per 

day.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



Border Control Posts in Wales 
Background Briefing Note  
September 2021 
 
 
 

 

What is Checked at a BCP?  

Checks will be conducted on a proportion of the SPS goods entering Great Britain 

(England, Wales and Scotland) from the EU. SPS goods include live animals, animal 

products, plants, plant products and wood. 

Products of Animal Origin is either: 

• For human consumption: such as meat, dairy, eggs, fish, honey, composite 

products such as pizzas, pies etc. Packaged / tinned food. Ambient, fresh 

(chilled) or frozen food.  

• Animal by-products: such as feathers, hides, bone, hatching eggs, hay, straw, 

fertiliser, blood products.  

Documentary Checks:  these will be a combination of physical and remote checks 

including elements such as importers details, consignment 

information, purpose of movement, port information, 

supporting information (e.g. Export Health Certification), 

whether or not import is permitted, and any known markers 

to suggest ID / physical inspection is necessary.  

Identity Checks: these include verifying the contents of vehicle match 

paperwork, customs seal check or more in depth check 

requirements, and checking the stamps, official marks, 

official labelling, and / or health / ID marks on the product 

or its packaging. 

Physical Checks: these include checking whether the cold chain has been 

maintained during transport, wrapping / packing is intact, 

transport conditions suitable, and, labelling is correct.  

Organoleptic inspection (smell, colour). Simple physical or 

chemical tests (e.g) cutting, thawing, cooking). Laboratory 

tests – microbiology etc. Offsite. 

Although documentary checks can generally be carried out remotely, some physical 

checks will be required, and these will take place at a BCP.  These physical checks 

are expected to cover only a small sample of SPS goods (and vehicles carrying other 

types of goods will not be subject to checks at a BCP). 

The percentages of checks required are derived from the following sources: POAO 

checks from the OCR; Physical checks and live animals are based on DEFRA’s 

analysis of various commodity types; and, Plants and Plant Products and High Risk 

Foods are based on Welsh Governments analysis of the commodity types. Checks 

will be completed largely on commercial traffic, either as single or mixed 

consignments; however, checks will also take place for pets, breeding stock, showing 

& event stock.   

Tudalen y pecyn 52



Border Control Posts in Wales 
Background Briefing Note  
September 2021 
 
 
 

 

Standards are agreed and set at a UK level in collaboration with the various 

Government administrations and agencies, such as the 4 Chief Veterinary Officers.  

Inspection Staff Include:  

• Animal and Plant Health Agency (a UK body) check live animals and plants and 

enforcement within the BCP. 

• Local Authority check fish, Products of Animal Origin and High Risk Food and 

Feed Not of Animal Origin 

• Local Authority also undertake ancillary work outside of the BCP (e.g. taking 

enforcement action) 

• Forestry Commission check wood and forestry products 

• Centre for Environment, Fisheries and Aquaculture Science (CEFAS) checks 

ornamental fish. 

HM Revenue & Customs – Inland Border Facilities: 

HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) is a UK Government agency with responsibility for 

customs checks. HMRC already have a presence at the South West Wales ports and 

is in the process of developing a dedicated Inland Border Facility (IBF) for Holyhead 

port. The IBF will also accommodate UK Border Force (UKBF) checks.  

The IBF is a separate facility to the Holyhead BCP; however, there will be some joint 

working where multiple checks are required and consignments need resealing by 

customs officials.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 53



Border Control Posts in Wales 
Background Briefing Note  
September 2021 
 
 
 

 

Context for Welsh Ports: 

The Ports in Wales are strategically important both internationally and regionally for 

commercial and passenger movements. They play a vital role in the movement of 

communications, people and goods between Republic of Ireland and Wales, England 

and mainland Europe.  

The Ports act as a gateway to the UK National Rail Network and the main highway 

network, connecting the Republic of Ireland to the rest of the UK and Europe. This is 

a strategically important means of access between the Republic of Ireland and 

European Union in high value or time sensitive goods utilising short sea crossings 

between Dublin – Holyhead and Rosslare – south Wales.  

In 2019, there were some 600,000 inbound freight movements from Ireland passing 

through Welsh ports. Of these, a sixth, some 92,000 movements would be of BCP 

interest, and thus potentially subject to the new SPS checking regime. 

For accompanied Roll on – Roll off freight, Holyhead is second only to Dover, and the 

5th busiest in the UK handling 6% of the total UK Roll on – Roll off freight each year. 

Holyhead is ranked 1st for accompanied and 4th for unaccompanied Roll on – Roll off 

freight traffic when considering just the Irish Sea ports.  

The port of Milford Haven in SWW is the UK’s fifth biggest port and the largest port in 

Wales, accounting for two-thirds of Welsh port traffic. The EU and US are the Port’s 

largest trading partners, with additional imports coming from Qatar and Algeria. 

Pembrokeshire is a critical link in the UK’s energy supply chain, with a cluster of key 

energy companies including one of the UK’s largest refineries. The key businesses in 

the region include Valero, Shell, Petronas, Puma Energy, Qatar Petroleum, and RWE. 

The BCPs will provide capacity for live animals and will be the only capacity for live 

animals on direct Ireland-UK routes. Welsh, Irish and UK businesses will be reliant on 

commodities flowing through the ports with wider supply chain impacts if the routes 

were to be affected.  

Without intervention, the ports would not be able to handle SPS goods leading to a 

shortfall of SPS capacity across the Irish Sea routes, re-routing of volumes on to other 

routes and a significant reduction or cessation of certain SPS trade between Ireland 

and GB.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 54



Border Control Posts in Wales 
Technical Briefing Note  
September 2021 
 
 
 

 

Introduction 

 

This document supplements the background briefing note on Border Control Posts 

(BCP). It provides the current position on BCP design, delivery and funding in Wales 

as at 10 September 2021.  

 

 Holyhead Port  

  

Site: 

The Holyhead BCP will be located on Welsh Government owned land at Parc Cybi, 

Holyhead, some 1.7 miles from the port. The site has already been partially developed 

as a HGV stacking area as part of the contingency planning for the end of the EU 

transition period. At 15 acres it provides space for swim lanes, fencing, inspection 

buildings, offices, parking, sustainable drainage, screening and other environmental 

mitigations.  

Planning: 

Planning permission is being sought via Special Development Order (SDO) under 

section 59 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. Planning permission and any 

conditions are made through a Statutory Instrument (SI). The planning application was 

submitted to Welsh Ministers on 06 August 2021. A decision is expected later in the 

year.  

Consent is being sought for a Consenting Envelope. The Consenting Envelope sets 

out the maximum assessed parameters of the development, within which all 

development will be limited to. The SDO limitations will be designed to mitigate the 

potential impacts of the development. The Consenting Envelope will ensure that the 

final design of the BCP does not trigger significant environmental effects, whilst also 

allowing an appropriate degree of flexibility to accommodate design developments. 

The community consultation ran for a period of 21 days from 24 March 2021 until 13 

April 2021, whereas technical stakeholders received an extended period. The 

consultation departed from the Welsh Government policy of allowing a 12-week 

period. This departure allowed for early engagement with stakeholders and take 

account of the requirements for checks as set out under the UK Border Operating 

Model. There is no statutory requirement to consult before making a Special 

Development Order (SDO). 

Welsh Government is currently in the process of developing its response to the 

community consultation before writing to respondents.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 55



Border Control Posts in Wales 
Technical Briefing Note  
September 2021 
 
 
 

 

Designs:  

The BCP is a bespoke facility designed to accommodate checks on the full range of 

SPS on live animals, animal products, plants, plant products and wood from the EU 

and the possible acceptance of rest of world (ROW) SPS trade. 

At 15 acres the site will provide space for swim lanes, fencing, inspection buildings, 

temperature controlled storage, offices, parking, sustainable drainage, screening and 

other environmental mitigations.  

Concept designs are near complete and Welsh Government is undertaking a 

BREEAM assessment of the development’s environmental, social and economic 

sustainability performance with a target rate of BREEAM Excellent.  

Detailed designs will be developed in conjunctions with the appointed construction 

Contractor.  

Construction: 

Welsh Government issued the construction invitation to tender (ITT) on 09 August and 

it will close on 17 September. The ITT was issued via the North Wales Construction 

Partnership framework, administered by Denbighshire County Council.  

A 2 stage design and build procurement strategy has been selected. The 2 stage 

approach is structured as follow: 

Stage 1 – Contractors design team works alongside Client design team to improve 

deliverability, programme works, establish supply chain and refine project cost.  

Stage 2 – On agreement of project cost established at end of Stage 1, the contract for 

the construction works will be confirmed and the Contractor will commence site works. 

Construction completion is expected in early 2023 with an operational date of 

approximately mid-2023.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 56



Border Control Posts in Wales 
Technical Briefing Note  
September 2021 
 
 
 

 

Fishguard & Pembroke Dock – South West Wales Ports 

 

Site: 

Due to the range of facilities required, but relatively low volumes, Welsh Government 

is exploring the provision of a single facility for South West Wales that would serve 

both (rival) ferry ports, located some 26 miles apart. Welsh Government do not own 

suitable sites in South west Wales to accommodate a BCP facility. This means Welsh 

Government have negotiate the acquisition of land.  

A site search process has appraised over 60 sites to date. Both local port and ferry 

operators, along with the Council and technical stakeholders, have been involved in 

the site search. A site south of Johnston is currently undergoing more detailed site 

investigations and we are negotiating the potential purchase with the landowner. The 

location is equally accessible for both ports and the site has ranked highly in terms of 

deliverability. However, the final decision on whether to proceed with this site will be 

subject to continued and rigorous assessment with technical stakeholders and the 

local community.  

Planning: 

Planning consent will be secured via a Statutory Development Order (SDO) following 

the same process as North Wales.  

Design: 

Based on this throughput, the BCP would consist of approximately 5,500sqm of 

specialist modern, bespoke buildings and supporting facilities to manage the required 

checks. This building size would support the continued flexibility of the ports to bring 

through the different goods, as inspection areas must be segregated – for example, 

refrigerated space, animal inspection facilities etc. The hard elements of the BCP i.e. 

the building, parking and access, would approximately equate to 20,000 sqm, or 6 

acres in total. It will include managed drainage, parking for staff and inspectors.  

The site subject to negotiation for purchase is much larger than what is required to 

accommodate the proposal providing flexibility to introduce suitable environmental 

mitigations and landscape buffers between the development and the local community. 

Concept designs will only start once a site is identified and secured.  

Construction: 

The procurement strategy for South West Wales has yet to be determined. It is 

anticipated that a one stage approach could be adopted for South-West Wales 

predicated on lesson learned from the two stage approach in North Wales, which will 

accelerate delivery. Construction is expected to complete in Spring 2023 with an 

operational date of approximately Autumn 2023.  

Tudalen y pecyn 57



Border Control Posts in Wales 
Technical Briefing Note  
September 2021 
 
 
 

 

Funding  

 

Currently: 

The Chief Secretary to the Treasury (CST) has agreed in principle the UK Government 

will fund additional costs associated with the inland sites in 2021-22 via a formal 

reserve claim.  This commitment is for incurred costs that are considered absolutely 

necessary to the build and includes such as costs which may fall into 2022/23 financial 

year. Welsh Government will be proceeding with costs at risk within its existing 

budgets until the settlement is reached with HM Treasury.  

The request to UK Government for the BCP construction and operational costs is 

being made in the 2021 Spending Review. The delivery of BCPs at Welsh ports will 

be at risk without a commitment from UK Government to fund the full capital and 

operational cost of developing BCPs. The Spending Review outcome is expected later 

this year.  

The original estimate provided by UK Government in 2020 was £10m to construct a 

single BCP with operational costs of £3-5m per annum.  

Longer Term: 

Many ports in England have constructed their own BCP facilities at the port, part 

funded through Government grants (the Port Infrastructure Fund, PIF).  UK 

Government has constructed some BCPs, including at Sevington in Kent.  Longer 

term, UK Government is examining the appropriate operational and funding model for 

these facilities, which may have implications for Welsh BCPs.  However, nothing has 

been decided yet and Welsh Government is seeking to influence the outcomes to 

ensure they are appropriate for the circumstances of our ports. 

Summary:  

A summary of the latest Infrastructure and Operational cost estimates for North & SW 

Wales BCP facilities as at 01 September 2021. 

 North Wales South West Wales 

Capital  £75m  £63m 

Revenue £16m p.a. £12m p.a. 

*Note figures include contingency for potential interim arrangements.  

Context:  

Designs for Holyhead remain in the concept phase and South West Wales concept 

designs are yet to be produced. This mean costs will evolve as detailed designs 

mature, construction bids are received, and the operational requirements develop.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 58



Border Control Posts in Wales 
Technical Briefing Note  
September 2021 
 
 
 

 

Interim Measures 

 

Since Welsh BCPs will not be able to accommodate the UK Government’s timetable, 

a number of contingency options have been considered (there are also a number of 

English and Scottish BCPs which will not be completed by the original due date). The 

UK Government’s legal assessment has emphasised the need for a coherent GB-wide 

regime. 

UKG is considering the approach and timing.  Further announcements will be made in 

due course by UKG but Welsh Ministers are determined to ensure these are suitable 

for the needs of our Welsh ports. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 59



 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rt Hon Lord Frost CMG 

Minister of State 
Cabinet Office   70 Whitehall   London    

SW1A 2AS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
Mr Vaughan Gething MS 
Minister for the Economy 
Welsh Government 

 

 14 September 2021 

 

Dear colleague, 

 

BORDER CONTROLS  

 

1. I write to let you know that I am announcing today by Written Ministerial Statement a delay to the 

introduction of customs and SPS controls on the importation of goods from the EU. 

 

2. Now that we are an independent trading country outside the Single Market and Customs Union, 

our intention remains to introduce the same controls on incoming goods from the EU as on goods 

from the rest of the world. The Government announced a timetable for the introduction of the final 

stages of those controls on 11 March. The Government’s own preparations, in terms of systems, 

infrastructure and resourcing, remain on track to meet that timetable.  

 

3. However, the pandemic has had longer lasting impacts on businesses, both in the UK and in the 

European Union, than many observers expected in March.  There are also pressures on global 

supply chains, caused by a wide range of factors including the pandemic and the increased costs 

of global freight transport. These pressures are being especially felt in the agrifood sector.  

 

4. In these circumstances, the Government has decided to delay further some elements of the new 

controls, especially those relating to Sanitary and Phytosanitary goods.  Accordingly: 

 

● The requirement for pre-notification of agri-food imports will be introduced on 1 January 

2022 as opposed to 1 October 2021. 

 

● The new requirements for Export Health Certificates, which were due to be introduced 

on 1 October 2021, will now be introduced on 1 July 2022. 

 

● Phytosanitary Certificates and physical checks on SPS goods at Border Control Posts, 

due to be introduced on 1 January 2022, will now be introduced on 1 July 2022. 

 

● The requirement for Safety and Security declarations on imports will be introduced as of 

1 July 2022 as opposed to 1 January 2022. 

 

5. The timetable for the removal of the current easements in relation to full customs controls and the 
Tudalen y pecyn 60



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

introduction of customs checks remains unchanged from the planned 1 January 2022.    

 

6. The Government will work closely with the Devolved Administrations on the implementation of 

this new timetable, given their devolved responsibilities for agri-food controls. 

 

7. We will, of course, keep your Committees updated on our progress and preparations throughout 

the year. 

 

With best wishes, 

 
 

Rt Hon Lord Frost CMG 

 

 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 61



Annwyl Llyr 

Deiseb P-06-1181 Mae treillio ar wely’r môr yn lladd ein bywyd gwyllt morol… 

Rhowch y gorau i chwalu’n moroedd!

Mae’r Pwyllgor Deisebau wrthi’n ystyried y ddeiseb ganlynol gan Robert Curtis. 

Gwnaethom drafod y ddeiseb yn ddiweddar, yn ein cyfarfod ar 20 Medi: 

Geiriad y ddeiseb: 

Mae’n peri sioc bod mwy na 97% o’n hardaloedd morol gwarchodedig – a 

grëwyd i ddiogelu cynefinoedd cefnforol – yn cael eu dinistrio trwy gael eu 

carthu a'u treillio ar wely’r môr. Yn ôl dadansoddiad o ddata cychod pysgota, 

mae treillio gwaelodol – sef y math mwyaf dinistriol o bysgota yng 

nghynefinoedd gwely’r môr – yn digwydd mewn 71 allan o 73 o ardaloedd 

morol gwarchodedig alltraeth ledled y DU. 

Rydym yn galw ar Lywodraeth Cymru i wahardd pob math o dreillio 

gwaelodol yn nyfroedd Cymru, gan longau tramor a'r DU fel ei gilydd. Rydym 

ni mewn argyfwng ecolegol ac mae angen gweithredu nawr. 

Yn y cyfarfod, cytunodd yr Aelodau i ysgrifennu atoch i ofyn a allai Ardaloedd 

Morol Gwarchodedig fod yn faes i'w ystyried gan eich Pwyllgor yn ystod y Senedd 

hon. 

Mae rhagor o wybodaeth am y ddeiseb, gan gynnwys gohebiaeth gysylltiedig, ar 

gael ar ein gwefan yn:

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=37889&Opt=3. 

Byddwn yn ddiolchgar pe gallech ymateb drwy e-bostio’r tîm clercio yn 

deisebau@senedd.cymru.  

Llyr Gruffydd AS  

Cadeirydd  

Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 

Tŷ Hywel

Bae Caerdydd 

CF99 1SN 8 Hydref 2021 

Tudalen y pecyn 62

Eitem 4.3

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=37889
https://busnes.senedd.cymru/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=37889&Opt=3
mailto:deisebau@senedd.cymru


 

 

 

  

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch â thîm clercio'r Pwyllgor drwy’r 

cyfeiriad e-bost isod, neu drwy ffonio 0300 200 6454. 

 

 

Yn gywir 

 

 

Jack Sargeant AS 

Cadeirydd  

Tudalen y pecyn 63



Julie James MS & Lesley Griffiths MS 

Minister for Climate Change and Minister for Rural Affairs 

Tŷ Hywel  

Cardiff Bay  

CF99 1NA 

12 October | 2021 

Dear Julie & Lesley, 

CC: Chairs of the Petitions Committee, CCEI Committee and ETRA Committee 

We are writing to you with regards to the cross-departmental issue of bottom trawling and wider 

fisheries management in Marine Protected Areas (MPAs). Given the relevance of this to a current 

Senedd petition, we have also shared this correspondence with Committee Chairs. 

We are gravely concerned at the lack of progress the Welsh Government has made to protect MPAs 

from damaging fishing gears, despite the legal duties upon it to do so. We are writing to you to 

highlight the absence of commitments and timescales that have been provided by the Welsh 

Government to address this, with specific reference to current processes: 

• The Assessing Welsh Fisheries Activities Project

• Benthic habitat measures proposed within the UK Marine Strategy consultation.

Assessing Welsh Fisheries Activities Project  

Please note our letter does not relate to the assessment aspect of this project, which is undertaken by 

Natural Resources Wales (NRW). 

The Welsh Government has yet to consult on management of towed gear (including bottom trawling) 

within MPAs. In contrast, other UK administrations have progressed to the introduction of 

management measures for all fisheries gears in MPAs and to consider highly protected areas (see 

Annex 1).  

The Welsh Government has legal duties (for example, under the Habitats Regulations, the Marine 

Strategy Regulations and UK Fisheries Act) to address this. Further delay on this is also at odds to the 

commitment to reversing the impacts of the nature crisis. This work must be recognised as a priority 

to ensure the future sustainable management of the marine environment in Wales. 

Towed gear assessments (“high-risk activities”) were provided to the Welsh Government by NRW in 

2017 as part of the Assessing Welsh Fisheries Activities Project (AWFA). Since then, the absence of a 

consultation on resulting measures has been the subject of recommendations by former Senedd 

Committees, urging progress. WEL members have also previously written to the Minister (then 

Tudalen y pecyn 64

https://petitions.senedd.wales/petitions/244792


Cabinet Secretary for Energy, Planning and Rural Affairs) regarding this. We have attached a response 

to one such letter, which we received in 2018 and which stated that additional resources had been 

acquired to accelerate this work. Stakeholders were also informed during the Welsh Marine Fisheries 

Advisory Group (WMFAG) that a consultation on a towed gear order had been drafted in 2018. Yet, 

a consultation is still outstanding. 

 

There is a long history of the Senedd seeking progress from the Welsh Government on this matter. 

For example, the Welsh Government were urged by Members for a timetable in 2017 and again in 

2020.In November 2019, the CCERA Committee recommended that a consultation should be brought 

forward on management options for high-risk activities by January 2021 at the latest. The response 

was that the assessment would be completed “as quickly as practically possible” but said a 

consultation as expected in early 2020. Since then, Members of the Senedd have sought updates on 

the proposed timetable for a consultation. As this written answer from March 2021 explains, we still 

don’t know when this will take place.  

 

This delay and uncertainty is not only contrary to the legal duties upon the Welsh Government, it is 

holding up management of other gears. Management of additional gears is also essential to address 

requirements under protected site legislation, the Marine Strategy Regulations and the UK Fisheries 

Act (2020) (for example, to minimise and, where possible, eliminate incidental catches of sensitive 

species, such as seabirds and cetaceans). Management of nets and lines across all fisheries in Welsh 

waters will be essential to achieve the latter. 

 

We would welcome a Ministerial statement of renewed ambition on fisheries management within 

protected areas. We are calling for specific time-bound commitments to ensure the sustainable 

management of all fisheries (Welsh, UK and non-UK registered vessels) and all gears (not just towed 

gear) within protected sites and beyond. 

 

It should be noted that whilst our response focuses on the delays to towed-gear measures in MPAs, 

this is a consequence of the gear-specific approach the Welsh Government has chosen to taken 

within the AWFA project. A holistic approach, considering all gear in MPAs, is needed. NRW have 

provided additional gear assessments to the Welsh Government already. These should also be 

addressed at the earliest opportunity. As part of this programme of work, any displacement of fishing 

activities or any resulting increase in use of alternative gear use should be managed to ensure 

sustainability.  

 

Proposed benthic habitat measures under the UK Marine Strategy 

There is a legal duty within the Marine Strategy Regulations for the Welsh Government, UK 

Government and other devolved administrations to achieve Good Environmental Status by 2020. This 

deadline was missed. Of particular relevance, governmental assessments identified a failure to 

achieve Good Environment Status for benthic habitats in the Celtic Seas. This was in part due to the 

Tudalen y pecyn 65

https://record.senedd.wales/WrittenQuestion/75360
https://record.assembly.wales/WrittenQuestion/80970
https://record.assembly.wales/WrittenQuestion/82225
https://moat.cefas.co.uk/biodiversity-food-webs-and-marine-protected-areas/benthic-habitats/


failure to achieve the target for physical damage to benthic habitats, which is currently focused on 

fisheries.  

 

The Welsh Government and other administrations are currently consulting on new measures to 

address the failure to achieve Good Environmental Status for benthic habitats and other descriptors. 

We have included a summary of fisheries management measures being proposed across the UK 

under this descriptor, which are in addition to work to develop policy frameworks (such as the 

upcoming Joint Fisheries Statement) under Annex 1. Wales is the only country not to include specific, 

time-bound commitments to fisheries management measures within the current consultation on the 

benthic habitats descriptor1.  

 

Given the Welsh Government has not cited any proposed new fisheries management measures for 

the benthic habitat descriptor within the current consultation, we would welcome an explanation as 

to why an exception is being sought under this descriptor and how the Welsh Government will 

contribute to Good Environmental Status of benthic habitats by 2024.  

 

Yours sincerely,  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1 The only measure proposed by Wales for benthic habitats is the outstanding update to the Section 7 list under the 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 

Emily Williams 

Co-Chair of WEL’s Marine Working Group 

RSPB Cymru 

Clare Trotman 

Co-Chair of WEL’s Marine Working Group 

Marine Conservation Society 

Tudalen y pecyn 66

https://moat.cefas.co.uk/biodiversity-food-webs-and-marine-protected-areas/benthic-habitats/physical-damage/


 

Annex 1 
Here’s a summary of specific fisheries management measures being proposed for introduction across 

the UK with timescales provided (emphasis added), under the benthic descriptor for the UK Marine 

Strategy.  

 

England  

• “Draft management measures for the first four sites include proposals to ban bottom-towed 

fishing…The aim is for the byelaws for these sites to be in place by September 2021. The full 

byelaw programme for all offshore MPAs is expected to be complete by the end of 2024.” 

• “…Recently the government also published Benyon Review, which the government will use to 

identify HPMAs with ecological value, including areas in English waters with potential to 

recover, and blue carbon habitats.” 

 

Northern Ireland 

• “DAERA has conducted a public consultation fisheries management measures for 52 of 124 

the remaining MPAs in the Northern Ireland inshore region with an aim of having the 

fisheries management measures in place for all MPAs by 2022.” 

 

Scotland 

• “…Fisheries management measures are being developed for the remaining 18 inshore MPAs 

where they are not already in place, with the aim of having all measures in place by March 

2024 at the latest.” 

• “In addition to protection for benthic features inside of MPAs, and in line with the General 

Policy 9 of Scotland’s Marine Plan on natural heritage, the Scottish Government is also 

developing fisheries management measures outside of MPAs for the 11 benthic priority 

marine features most impacted by seabed abrasion…are also due to be implemented by 

March 2024.” 

• “The Scottish Government has committed to designating 10% of Scottish seas as HPMAs by 

2026 for inshore waters and, subject to the legislative framework being put in place, the same 

date for offshore waters.” 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 67



 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Janis Richards 
Membership Director- Wales 
Make UK  

t: 07920 117765 
e: jrichards@makeuk.org 

makeuk.org 

Make UK is a trading name of EEF Limited. 
Registered Office: Broadway House, Tothill Street, London, SW1H 9NQ. 

Registered in England and Wales No. 05950172 

Dear Mr Gruffydd 

I am reaching out to congratulate you in your election as the Climate Change, 
Environment and Infrastructure Committee Chair as well as offering you Make UK’s 
support. We recognise the significant role you have through the business committee and 
the importance of analysing policies of the Government whilst looking at the wider impact 
across the Welsh economy. 

Make UK, the manufacturers’ organisation - Make UK is the voice of manufacturing in 
the UK, representing all aspects of the manufacturing sector, some 20,000 members 
employing over one million workers.  

Manufacturing in Wales - I’m delighted to tell you that in Wales, manufacturing accounts 
for £10.8bn of output, providing 153,000 jobs, and these are some of the best quality jobs 
in the country, paying an wages which are an average of 25% higher than the rest of the 
economy in the region.  

We take great pride in our role as the primary source of information and research for 
those, seeking to better understand the manufacturing sector. Recent research conducted 
by Make UK highlighed what manufacturers across Wales see as the next 3 proorites for 
the Welsh Parliament 

1. Investing in skills that will support the economic and social aims of the nation.
Identifying the priorities for the  economy of ‘tomorrow’, creating the national
ambition to deliver on the skills and the business environment where manufacturers
can grow and thrive to support communities, create good jobs, and allow the nation
to take full advantage of projects

2. Invest in green technologies like the country’s growing renewables sector, to
support clean growth for the future and the transition towards a more sustainable

12 October 2021 

Llyr Gruffydd AM 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 

SeneddClimate@senedd.wales 

Tudalen y pecyn 68

Eitem 4.4

mailto:jrichards@makeuk.org


 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Make UK is a trading name of EEF Limited. 
Registered Office: Broadway House, Tothill Street, London, SW1H 9NQ.  

Registered in England and Wales No. 05950172 

 

economy. We will work with the Welsh Government and new Parliament as it 
renews its ‘’Prosperity for All: A Low Carbon Wales” agenda to ensure that 
manufacturing continues to support the decarbonisation agenda, and the wider 
opportunities to create a vibrant sector in the economy. 
 

3. Continue to work with the Welsh Government and new Parliament to help deliver 
the commitments set out in the Manufacturing Future for Wales – A 
Framework for Action. The framework supports manufacturers in Wales to deliver 
the jobs of the future, both recruiting and retaining the very best talent to boost 
productivity and deliver shared economic growth across the country 

 
Across Wales manufacturers are leading the way on key societal challenges which we 
face – from healthcare to climate change, clean transport and green energy. However, in 
order to do this we need a business environment which allows manufacturers not just to 
survive but thrive, and a strong relationship with the Senedd and the Welsh Government is 
critical to this. 
 
Meet our members 
 
We would like to invite you to attend a roundtable with Make UK members from across the 
various sub-sectors of manufacturing in Wales. This would provide you with an excellent 
chance to hear the very latest from the sector including the current challenges 
manufacturers face along with their priorities for the future.  
 
If you would like to find out more about manufacturing in Wales, please don’t hesitate to 
get in touch with me and I would be very happy to set up a meeting at your convenience. 
 
 
Yours sincerely              
 
 
 
Janis Richards 
Membership Director- Wales 
 
Cc- llyr.gruffydd@senedd.wales 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 69



Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Minister for Climate Change 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru 
Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Llŷr Gruffydd AS 
Cadeirydd  
Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 

Llyr.Gruffydd@senedd.wales 

15 Hydref 2021 

Rheoliadau Amodau Ffytoiechydol (Diwygio rhif 2) 2021 

Mae'r Ysgrifennydd Gwladol yn bwriadu gwneud yr Offeryn Statudol (OS) a enwir uchod o 
dan bwerau a roddwyd gan Erthyglau 5(3), 30(1), 37(5), 40(3), 41(3), 42(3), 72(3) a 105(6) 
o Reoliad (UE) 2016/2031 Senedd Ewrop a'r Cyngor ar fesurau i amddiffyn planhigion rhag
plâu. Bydd yr OS yn gymwys i Gymru, Lloegr a'r Alban a'i ddiben fydd diogelu
bioddiogelwch a chefnogi’r fasnach rhwng Prydain Fawr a thrydydd gwledydd perthnasol
drwy gyflwyno mesurau pellach i amddiffyn nwyddau planhigion sy’n peri risg.

Mae'r OS yn diwygio Rheoliad (UE) 2019/2072 sy'n sefydlu amodau unffurf ar gyfer 
gweithredu Rheoliad (UE) 2016/2031 a gyfer: 

 Cyflwyno mesurau ledled Prydain Fawr yn erbyn mewnforio planhigion lletyol a
nwyddau perthnasol eraill a reoleiddir, mewn perthynas â rhai plâu. Mae'r mesurau
hyn yn gymwys i drydydd gwledydd penodol sy'n peri lefel annerbyniol o risg i
Brydain Fawr.

 Dadreoleiddio plâu yr aseswyd nad ydynt o unrhyw risg i fioddiogelwch Prydain Fawr,
gan nad oes cyfiawnhad technegol mwyach dros barhau i’w rheoleiddio.

 Rwy’n ysgrifennu atoch i roi gwybod ichi fy mod wedi rhoi fy nghaniatâd i'r Ysgrifennydd 
Gwladol gymhwyso'r OS hwn i Gymru. Deallaf y bydd yr OS yn cael ei osod gerbron 
Senedd y Deyrnas Unedig ar 21 Hydref o dan y weithdrefn negyddol. 

Tudalen y pecyn 70

Eitem 4.5

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales


Pan fo gofyn i ni ystyried a diwygio deddfwriaeth o fewn amserlen dynn gydag adnoddau 
prin, egwyddor gyffredinol Llywodraeth Cymru yw ein bod, os yw hynny'n briodol, yn 
caniatáu i Lywodraeth y DU ddeddfu ar ein rhan. Os gwrthodir y caniatâd hwnnw, bydd 
angen gwneud y cywiriadau hyn drwy ddeddfwriaeth a wneir gan Lywodraeth Cymru. Nid 
oes digon o amser nac adnoddau i ddrafftio a gosod rheoliadau o'r fath yr un pryd â 
Llywodraeth y DU a byddai oedi yn peryglu ein bioddiogelwch.  

Rwy'n anfon copi o'r llythyr hwn at y Cwnsler Cyffredinol a Gweinidog y Cyfansoddiad, y 
Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a'r Trefnydd, a Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad a Chadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a 
Materion Gwledig. 

Yn gywir, 

Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Minister for Climate Change   

Tudalen y pecyn 71



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 72

Eitem 7 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith: Craffu ar waith y Gweinidog a’r Dirprwy Weinidog Newid Hinsawdd
	Papur - Llywodraeth Cymru (Saesneg yn unig)

	4.1 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar gyfer Bil yr Amgylchedd:
	4.2 Safleoedd Rheoli Ffiniau yng Nghymru
	211004_MinEconomy_to_Chairs_Border-Controls_c.pdf
	Annex_2021-09-09 - Border Control Posts - Background Briefing Note.pdf
	Annex_2021-09-09 - Border Control Posts - Technical Briefing.pdf
	Annex_ Letter from Lord Frost CMG to Vaughan Gething MS.pdf

	4.3 Ardaloedd Morol Gwarchodedig yng Nghymru
	Llythyr gan Cyswllt Amgylchedd Cymru at y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd a'r Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd mewn perthynas â treillio ar wely’r môr ac Ardaloedd Morol Gwarchodedig (Saesneg yn unig)

	4.4 Gweithgynhyrchu yng Nghymru
	4.5 Rheoliadau Amodau Ffytoiechydol (Diwygio rhif 2) 2021
	7 Trafod blaenraglen waith y Pwyllgor



